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NOTICE OF 26TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
 
SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the (26th) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members 
of the Loantap Credit Products Private Limited (“The Company”) will be held on Monday, September 
19, 2022 at 12:00 NOON at registered office at Office No. 103, 1st Floor, Hermes Waves, Kalyani 
Nagar, Pune 411006 to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1) TO APPROVE AND ADOPT AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 TOGETHER WITH REPORTS OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 be and are hereby approved and adopted.” 

 
 

By Order of the Board of  
 Loantap Credit Products Private Limited 

 
 

 
           

Place: Pune 
Date: September 16, 2022 
 

Satyam Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07461961 

Vikas Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 03112103 

 
  



 

   
 

 

NOTES: 
 
1. The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the ordinary 

business respectively, set out in the Notice is annexed hereto. 
 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead 
of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument of 
proxy in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly 
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the meeting. A person can act as a proxy 
on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person 
or shareholder. 

 
3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 
4. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the Members at the 
Annual General Meeting. 

 
5. Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to write their DP ID and Client ID 

number(s) and those who hold share(s) in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number(s) 
in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the 
Meeting. 
 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board of  
 Loantap Credit Products Private Limited 

 
       

Place: Pune 
Date: September 16, 2022 
 

Satyam Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07461961 
 

Vikas Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 03112103 
 

  



Form No. MGT-11 Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]  

CIN : U65910PN1996PTC101188 
Name of the company : LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered office : Office No. 103, 1st Floor, Hermes Waves, Kalyani Nagar, Pune 411006 

   Name of the member (s): 

Registered address: 

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id: 

DP ID: 

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

1. Name: …………………… 

Address: E-mail 
Id:  

Signature: ……………., or failing him 

2. Name: …………………… 

Address: E-mail 
Id:  

Signature: ……………., or failing him 

3. Name: …………………… 

Address: E-mail 
Id:  

Signature: ……………. 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 26th Annual 
General Meeting of the company, to be held on the Monday, September 19, 2022 at 12:00 Noon at 
registered office at Office No. 103, 1st Floor, Hermes Waves, Kalyani Nagar, Pune 411006 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 



Resolution No: 

1. To approve and adopt audited financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022 together with reports of the board of directors and auditors thereon:

Signed this…… day of……… 2022 

Affix 
Revenue 

Signature of shareholder Stamp 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 



 

   
 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

 
DP ID. 
 

  FOLIO NO.  

CLIENT ID 
 

  NO. OF SHARES  

 
Name & Address of Shareholder / Proxy holder 
 
----------------------------------------------------------- 
 
----------------------------------------------------------- 
 
----------------------------------------------------------- 
 
I certify that I am a registered Shareholder / Proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company.  I 
hereby record my presence at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday, 
September 19, 2022 at 12:00 Noon at registered office at Office No. 103, 1st Floor, Hermes Waves, 
Kalyani Nagar, Pune 411006  
 
 
        Member’s / Proxy’s Signature 
 
(Shareholder attending the meeting in person or by proxy is requested to complete the attendance slip 
and handover at the entrance of the Office) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

   
 

 

ROUTE MAP OF VENUE OF THE MEETING 
 

 



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22  
 
To, 
The Members, 
LoanTap Credit Products Private Limited 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the business and operations of your Company 
along with the Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:                           

      

 
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 
 
During this financial year, the Total Revenue of the Company increased from INR 4,543.48 lakhs to INR 
6,208.64 lakhs and Company has earned profit of INR 187.49 lakhs as compared to net loss of INR (740.79) 
lakhs in previous year. 
 
Change in status of the company: 
 
The Company continues to be a Private Company and there was no change in the status of the Company 
during the year. It is to be noted that the Company has issued listed Non-Convertible Debentures in the form 
of Market Linked Debentures (Debt) which are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange since September 2021. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year.  
 

(Amount in Lakhs) 
Particulars For the year ended as 

on 31st March, 2022                                                         
For the year ended as 
on 31st March, 2021                                                         

Total Income 6,208.64 4,543.48 
Total Expenditure 5,955.21 5,539.72 
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 253.43 (996.24) 
Tax Expenses   
Current Income Tax 49.30 3.30 
Deferred Tax 16.64 (258.75) 
-Previous year excess provision for tax written back 
-MAT Credit entitlement 

 
- 

 
- 

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation 187.49 (740.79) 
Other Comprehensive Income 9.54 1.34 
Total Comprehensive Income 197.04 (739.45) 
Earnings per share   
Basic (Rs.) 8.73 (34.47) 
Diluted (Rs.) 2.73 (34.47) 



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis forming part of this Report and attached to this Report as 
 “Annexure I”. 
 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENT: 
 
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of 
this report.  

 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Management has transferred 20% of the profit to the 
statutory reserve as required to be maintained under section 45-IC (1) of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act,1934. 
 
DIVIDEND: 
 
Your Director’s do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.  
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION 
FUND: 
 
The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company as there 
was no dividend declared and paid during the year under review. 
 
DEPOSITS: 
 
The Company has not invited or renewed any deposits or has not withheld any unpaid/claimed deposit or 
has not defaulted in repayment of deposit or its interest under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 during 
the year under review. Further, the Company has not received any amount from the Director(s) or their 
relatives during the year under review. Attention of members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions as set 
out in Note No. 38 of Financial Statements. 

 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
During the Financial Year 2021-22 there is no change in the share capital of the Company. 
 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transactions on these items during the year under review:  
 
A)  Issue of equity shares with differential rights 
B)  Issue of sweat equity shares 
C) Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the 
benefit of employees 
 



DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS: 

There is no issue of Employee Stock Options during the financial year 2021-22 by the Company. However, 
the holding company has granted the ESOP to the Employees of the Company.  

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, relating to Meeting of Board of Directors and General Meetings respectively 
have been duly complied with. 

CREDIT RATING: 

Below are the credit ratings provided/reaffirmed by the Rating agencies as detailed in the table: 

Means of 
Borrowings 

Rating Agency Rating Assigned 

Commercial Papers CARE CARE A3 
Non-Convertible 
Debentures 

INDIA Ratings 
CRISIL 
CARE  

BBB-/ Stable 

Long Term Principal 
Protected Market 
Linked Debentures 

India Ratings 
CRISIL BBB-/ Stable 

Bank Lines CARE 
CRISIL BBB-/ Stable 

Pass Through 
Certificate (PTC) 

CARE CARE A- 

 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES COMPANIES AND ITS 
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION: 

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company. 

BORROWINGS: 

The Borrowings of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is INR 12,550 Lakhs as 
against INR 9,950 Lakhs in the previous year. 

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES: 

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company raised an amount of INR 4,340 Lakhs through issue of 
Secured, Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) on private placement 
basis, while the Company has raised INR 2,000 Lakh through issue of Secured, Rated, listed, Redeemable 
Principle Protected Market Linked Debentures (PPMLD). The MLDs issued by the Company are listed 
on the BSE Limited. 



During the year under review, the Company has duly made timely payment of the redemption amount 
(principal and interest) on the NCDs. 

COMMERCIAL PAPERS (CPs): 

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company had issued Commercial Papers (CPs) for an 
amount aggregating up to INR 10140 Lakh. 

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE: 

MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited is the Debenture Trustees for the Non-Convertible 
Debentures and MLDs issued by the Company. 

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 

NSDL Database Management Limited acts as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

BOARD MEETINGS: 

The Board of Directors of the Company met 33 times during the year in respect of which proper 
notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the Minutes book 
kept by the Company for the purpose. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Sr. No Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 01st April 2021 3 3 
2 28th May 2021 3 2 
3 31st May 2021 3 2 
4 15th June 2021 3 2 
5 20th May 2021 3 2 
6 23rd June 2021 3 2 
7 28th June 2021 3 2 
8 31st July 2021 3 2 
9 26th August  2021 3 2 

10 09th September 2021 3 3 
11 24th September 2021 3 2 
12 28th September 2021 3 2 
13 29th September 2021 3 2 
14 13th October 2021 3 2 
15 08th November 2021 3 2 
16 15th November 2021 3 2 



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

17 18th November 2021  3 2 
18 20th November 2021 3 2 
19 23rd November 2021 3 2 
20 26th November 2021 3 2 
21 30th November 2021 3 2 
22 06th December 2021 3 2 
23 13th December 2021 3 2 
24 22nd December 2021 3 2 
25 30th December 2021 3 2 
26 4th January 2022 3 2 
27 17th Jan 2022 3 2 
28 20th Jan 2022 3 2 
29 27th Jan 2022 3 2 
30 3rd Feb 2022 3 2 
31 28th Feb 2022 3 2 
32 14th Feb 2022 3 2 
33 23rd February 2022 3 2 
34 2nd March 2022 3 2 
35 8th March 2022 3 2 
36 10th March 2022 3 2 
37 31st March 2022 3 2 

 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) are not applicable to the Company. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 
 
The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) are not applicable to the Company. 
 
BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
 
There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the statutory auditor for 
financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022. Further the observations of the Auditors, when read together 
with the relevant notes to the accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and board do not call for 
any further comments. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 
A) Changes in Directors: 

 



There were no change in the composition of Board of Directors of the Company in the financial year 
2021-22. 

B) Declaration by the Independent Directors:

The provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

C) Changes in Key Managerial Personnel:

There were no changes in the Key managerial personnel during the year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

VIGIL MECHANISM: 

The provisions of section 177(9) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board & its Power) Rules, 
2014, are not applicable to the Company. Your Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent, ethical & 
professional work environment. The Mechanism is established for Directors and employees directly to 
report their concerns before the Board. 

COST RECORDS: 

The provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act is not applicable to the Company and hence the 
maintenance of cost records, is not required. 

RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has a robust strategy to identify, evaluate business risks and opportunities. These strategies 
seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the 
Company’s competitive advantage and helps in identifying risks trend, exposure and potential impact 
analysis at a Company level as also separately for different business segments. 

ANNUAL RETURN: 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return as on 
March 31, 2022 shall be made available on the Company’s website https://loantapcredit.loantap.in/
annual-returns/  

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/s DSRV & Co. LLP (Firm Registration No. 006993N/0N500073) has been appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 22nd September, 2021 Annual General Meeting of the Company 
for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of that Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
Annual General 



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

Meeting to be held in the year 2026 at such remuneration and out of pocket expenses, as may be mutually 
agreed between Board of Directors of the company and the Statutory Auditors. 
 
AUDITOR`S REPORT INCLUDING DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITOR U/S 143 
(12):     
 
The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended, 31st March, 2022 is annexed herewith for your kind 
perusal and information. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and 
Auditors' remarks in their report are self-explanatory and hence do not require any further explanations.  

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:  
 
The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREGIN EXCHANGE 
EARNING AND OUTGO: 

 
• CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  

 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption are not required to be reported considering 
the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.  

 
• FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 
The company has not done any transactions whereby it is required to report foreign exchange earnings 
as well as outgo. 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
The Company, being a non-banking finance company registered with the RBI and engaged in the business 
of giving loans, is exempt from complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of loans and guarantees. Accordingly, the disclosures of the loans given as required under the 
aforesaid section have not been made in this Report. 
 
PARTICULARS OF ACCEPTANCE OF UNSECURED LOANS FROM DIRECTORS: 
 
During the year Company has neither accepted nor repaid any loans to Directors. 
 
PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS UNDER SECTION 188 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
During the period under review, the Company has entered into related party transactions which are in 
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. Please refer disclosure of transactions with related 
parties set out in Note No. 38 of Financial Statements, forming part of the Annual Report & in respect of 
material arm length transaction, Form AOC-2 is attached herewith (Annexure – II).  



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
 
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual 
working in premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to create 
and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. 
The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The policy 
aims at prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting 
and prevention of sexual harassment. 
 
Your director’s further state that during the year under review, there was 1 complaint filed pursuant to the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The status 
of the same is resolved. 
 
Number Complaint Filed  Number of Complaint Solved 

1 1 
 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors confirm that: 

 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable 

accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments  

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and of the profit /loss of the Company for that period; 

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records  in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting  fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
e) The Company being unlisted, Clause pertaining to laying down internal financial control is not applicable 

to the Company. 
f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibilities) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 
Company. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS: 
 
During the year, no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 
COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

 
The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, relating to Meeting of Board of Directors and General Meetings respectively 
have been duly complied with. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 
 
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. 
 
RBI GUIDELINES 

 
The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the RBI pertaining to non–
performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets, etc. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  
 
Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation to the continued co-operation received from the 
Banks, Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Shareholders during the year under review. Your 
Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed service of the 
Executives, Staff and Workers of the Company. 

 
On behalf of the Board of Directors            
For LoanTap Credit Products Private Limited 

 
 

 

Satyam Kumar  
Director 
DIN: 07461961 

Vikas Kumar  
Director 
DIN: 03112103 

 
Date: September 16, 2022 
Place: Pune  



   

 
 

        Annexure I 

                                      MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

Economic Overview: 
 
In the last few years, the nascent Fintech sector saw a large amount of froth being generated. This 
happened due to the high velocity coming from underserved and underpenetrated credit need in a 
large aspirational population and the pressure coming from all corners of the economy, pandemic, 
regulators, and legislators. 
 
The financial year 2021-2022 began with continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic and associated 
uncertainties. It was deadly resulting in massive loss of life and tragic misery for the people in a 
big way. The economy suffered heavily as a result of nationwide lockdown and disruption of 
normal life especially in the first quarter of FY 2021-2022. 
 
However, unlike the previous financial year, the effect of pandemic this time was short-lived. After 
the first quarter of subdued performance, the Indian economy demonstrated a strong recovery, 
resulting in GDP growth. Almost all segments of the economy have stabilised and the whole 
economy showed robust growth during the year. 
 
Market Scenario: 
 
Your Company operates as Digital NBFC and offers personal loans to urban salaried customers 
and small business loans to MSME customers. The company is committed to deliver flexible loan 
products to the customers ranging from Personal Term Loans, EMI free loans, Overdraft etc. The 
company has strong board, experienced management, stable asset quality and a diversified set of 
lenders. The NBFC sector is expected to clock loan growth of more than 10 per cent in the current 
financial year (FY23), according to Report of certain Rating agencies. 
  
Financial Performance and Highlights: 
 
Assets Under Management (AUM) has increased by 18% as compared to previous financial year 
2020-21 i.e. from INR 305 crores to INR 361 crores in FY 2021-22. Further disbursements 
increased by 86% i.e. from INR 107 Crores in FY 2020-21 to INR 200 crores in FY 2021-22.  
Interest income grown by 36% i.e. from INR 42 crores in FY 2020-21 to INR 58 crores in FY 
2021-22. 
 
Internal Control: 
 
Company has an internal control system which commensurate with its size and scale. It evaluates 
the adequacy of all internal controls and processes and ensures strict adherence to clearly laid down 
processes and procedures, as well as to the prescribed regulatory and legal framework. Company 



   

 
 

has an independent Internal auditor to review the adequacy and effectiveness of its internal 
controls. 
 
RBI Policy Measures: 
 
RBI has come out with guidelines on digital lending explaining about remote and automated 
lending process by use of seamless digital technologies for customer acquisition, credit 
assessment, loan approval, disbursement, recovery, and associated customer service. 
 
This is RBIs step toward recognition and support for digital lending. This shall bring lots of 
transparency and further enhance digital lenders mission to achieve financial inclusion. 
 
Outlook: 
 
As we step out of the shadow of the pandemic, the economy is expected to witness a sustained 
recovery. As the market and customer expectations mature, differentiated customer acquisition 
and deeper customer engagement throughout the lifecycle will assume importance with technology 
being a key enabler towards achieving this. Your Company with a diversified product suite with 
products such as personal loan and short term revolving Credit line is well positioned to chart a 
growth path for fiscal 2023 and expects a sustained growth in business and revenues.  
 
New business opportunities are expected to gain further momentum as impact of COVID-19 
remains low with near complete normalisation of economic activities. Several initiatives taken 
earlier by the Company to navigate the pandemic should hold it in good stead. 
 
Your Company expects to improve its performance in FY 2022-2023 and sustain its growth 
trajectory. The approach would be to continue with the growth momentum while balancing risks. 
With a view to meet its growth plans the Company will continue to tap diverse source of funds 
including equity and debt to maintain an optimal capital structure.  
 
We take special pride in talking about LTFLoW, our future-ready tech stack for retail lending 
and its monetization. Today, when the Digital Lending space is abuzz with a lot of players, 
efficient underwriting and fast decisioning is a challenge. LTFLoW, with its versatile services that 
resolve sourcing discrepancies, powers the credit decisioning process and delivers higher 
collection efficiency is showing the anticipated growth since it was launched last year. 
 
Capital Collaborations:  
 
With normalcy returning, personal loan too has witnessed growth and robust demand. Business is 
back to pre-Covid levels. To meet the surging demand, we have continuously worked with our 
lending partners to develop a deep understanding of the segment and portfolio resilience. 

LoanTap is glad to mention that the company has partnered with more than Six large Financial 
Institutions for co-lending program. These institutions include some of the large NBFCs and PSUs 
of India. 



   

 
 

Human Resource:  
 
Our employees are our most valuable resources and it’s our endeavor to provide a conducive 
workplace environment where they are enriching to work, discover innovative ideas & solutions 
to ever challenging workspace where we are in. 
 
Management team also plays a crucial role in induction, training & development to help employees 
realize their full potential and thus contributing to our overall business growth. Also, our HR 
function plays an important role in acquiring the right talent, recruitment, on-boarding and training 
for performance management, compensation and benefits and organizational development. 

 

 

 

  

 



   

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

ANNEXURE II 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred 
to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third 
proviso thereto. 
 
Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
 

  (i) 
Sr. No. Particulars Details 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship: 

LoanTap Financial Technologies Private Limited 

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions: Software usage and maintenance  
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / 

transactions: 
Continuing   

(d) Salient terms of the contracts / arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any 

60,00,000/- 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: June 28, 2021 
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of,

Loantap Credit Products Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Loantap Credit Products Private Limited ("the

Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2022, and the statement of Profit
and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013

(the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,,2022 and its profit, total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 201.3

and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the IND AS financial statements,

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the lnd AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the lnd AS financial statements as a whole,

ing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that

ined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communica

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for

c/)
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audit of the lnd AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial
statements, The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying lnd AS financial
statements.

statements)

Audit Matters

The Company has adopted lnd AS from
1't April 2021 with an effective date of
1't April 2020 for such transition. For
periods up to and including the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Company
had prepared and presented its
financial statements in accordance with
the erstwhile generally accepted
accounting principles in lndia (lndian

GAAP). To give effect of the transition
to lnd AS, these financial statements for
the year ended 3Lst March 2022,
together with the comparative financial
information for the previous year
ended 31't March 2021, and the
transition date Balance Sheet as at 1't

April 2020 have been prepared under
lnd AS.

The transition has involved significant
change in the Company's policies and
processes for financial reporting,
including generation of supportable
information and applying estimates to
inter alia determine impact of lnd AS on

accounting and d isclosu re

requirements prescribed under extant
Reserve Bank of lndia (RBl) directions.

How our audit addressed the Kev Matter

Read the lnd AS impact assessment
performed by the Management and the
resultant changes made to the accounting
policies considering the requirements of
the new framework.

Evaluated the exemptions and exceptions
allowed by lnd AS and applied by the
Management in applying the first-time
adoption principles of lnd AS 101 in respect
of fair valuation of assets and liabilities
existing as at transition date.

Tested the accounting adjustments posted
as at the transition date and in respect of
the previous year to convert the financial
information reported under erstwhile
lndian GAAP to lnd AS.

Tested the disclosures prescribed under lnd
AS.

ln view of the complexity involved, lnd AS transition and the preparation of financial statements
subsequent to the transition date have been areas of key focus in our audit.



Company has carried lmpairment loss allowance of Rs. 1,887 Lakhs as on 31't March 2022 and has
recognized impairment on financial instruments of Rs. 1013/- (Lakhs) for the year ended 31't March
2022.

(Refer to the accounting policies in "Note 3 to the IND AS financial statements: ,,Note 3.1(iii) -
lmpairment of financial assets", and "Note 3.14 - Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements,,)

How our audit addressed the Key Matter
Our audit procedures included:

o Understanding management's
processes, systems and controls
implemented in relation to impairment
allowance process.

o Assessing the design a nd
implementation of key internal financial
controls over loan impairment process

used to calculate the impairment charge.
o lnvolving our modelling specialist to

understand ihe model methodology and
reasonableness of assumptions used.

o Testing the accuracy of key inputs in the
calculation and evaluating the
reasonableness of the assumptions
made.

o Testing the PD and LGD calculation
workings performed by management.

o Changes to the modelling assumptions
were assessed to confirm these were
a ppropriate.

o Considering the adequacy of the
Company's disclosure on impairment
loss and key assumptions.

Considering the significance of such allowance to the overall financial statements and the degree of
estimation involved in computation of expected credit losses, this area is considered as a key audit
matter

Recognition and measurement of impairment
of loans involves significant management
judgement.

With the applicability of tnd AS 109, credit loss
assessment is based on expected credit loss
(ECL) model. Management exercises
judgement in determining the quantum of
loss based on a range of factors.
The significant areas are: -

o Segmentation of loan book - Loan
staging criteria

o Calculation of probability of default/
loss given default

r Consideration of forward looking
macro-economic factors.

As detailed in accounting policy (refer note 3

to the financial statements), the
determination of loan impairment provisions
is inherently judgmental and relies on
managements' best estimate of a variety of
inputs. Wherever data was not available,
reasonable alternatives are applied, Given the
size of loan book relative to the balance sheet
and the impact of impairment provision on
the books, we have considered this as a key
audit matter. Estimates, by their nature, give

risk of material misstatement.

lmpairment of financial ass.ets (expe.cted credit lossesl (Refer lyote No. 2g of the lnd AS financial
statements)

rise to a



The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the lnd AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the lnd
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Companyb financial

reporting process.

Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain rlasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

zrl1ti1.(uditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is

/*fl6fi\ra guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

6(r^*Aron\H6\tement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

Io\*



material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these lnd AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' ldentifo and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company,to
cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

of such communication.



a) As required by the Companies (Auditor,s Report), Order
Government of rndia in terms of sub section (11) of section
'Annexure A'a statement on the matters specified.

2020, issued by the Central
1,43 of the Act, we give in the

b) As required by section 143 (3) of the companies Act, 20L3, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20L3 ("the Act"), read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20L4.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 764 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201.4, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

s)

il.

ilr.



iv' a) The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & belief, the
Company has not advanced, loaned or invested any funds (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, dir:ectly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & belief, the
Company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1L (e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v, The Company has neither declared nor paid the dividend during the year. Hence,
Section 123 does not applicable to the company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with
the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section 197 is not
applicable to a private company. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.

FoTDSRVANDCOLLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 006993N/N500073)

Place: Gurgaon
oate: 30/05 12022

Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
Partner

Membership No. 092678
(UD|N: I Zzoqzsal AKX ttgtt\*



"Annexure A" referred to in Our Report of Even Date to the members of Loantap Credit
Products Private Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 3lst March,
2022.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that

i. !n respect of thi Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangibte Assets:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the
year and were physically verified by the Management during the year, According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on
which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title
deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the
financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date,

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. ln respect of lnventories:



The company is Non-Banking Financiat company and in the business of providingloans and does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.
The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crorerupees' in aggregate, by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security ofloans (assets) during the year.

iii' ln respect of Repayment of investments, guarantee, security and loans granted by theCompany.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or otherparties covered in the Register maintained under section 1g9 of the Act, Accordingly, theprovision of clause 3(iii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The provisions of paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the order are not applicable to the
Company as its principal business is to give loans.

b) ln our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the
Srant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company,s interest.

c) ln respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repaymentof principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest have generally
been regular as per stipulation.

d) ln respect of loans granted by the company, there is no overdue amount
remaining outstanding as at the barance sheet date.

e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
3(iii)(f) is not appticabte.

The company has not providerd any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or
any other parties.

a)

b)



According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not granted any loans, made
investments or provided guarantees and securities which attract the provisions of section
L85 and section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company,

v. ln respect of Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v)of the order is not applicable.

vi. !n respect of Maintenance of costing records:

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 20L3 for the business activities carried
out bythe Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vii. ln respect of Statutory Dues:

a) ln our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees,State
lnsurance, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees' State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
in arrears as at March3t,2022 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

viii. !n respect of Unrecorded income

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. !n respect of Default in repayment of borrowings:

The Company has not defaulted in any repayment
borrowings from any lender.
The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by
institution or government or any government authority.

b.

of loans or other

any bank or financial



on an overall examination of the financiar statements of the company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

x. !n respect of Funds raised and Utilization:

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(xXa) of the Order is not applicable.

b' During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable.

xi. ln respect of Fraud and whistle-blower complaints:

a' No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

b, No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

c. We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xii. ln respect of Nidhi Company:

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause (xii) of the order is not applicable to
the company.

xiii. ln respect of Related Party Transactions:

ln our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section t77 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards./\
-/

c.

d.



xiv. ln respect of lnternal Audit:

ln our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to
the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

xv. ln respect of Non-Cash Transactions:

ln our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section
192of the Companies Act,20L3 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. ln respect of Registration under Section 45-lA of RBI Act, 1934:

a. The Company has registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act,

1934.

b, The company has not carried on any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities (NBFC or HFC)without having a valid registration certificate from RBl.

c. Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) under the RBI regulations and it
does not continue to fulfil the criteria of a ClC. ln case the company is an exempted

or unregistered ClC, does the company continue to fulfil the criteria for exemption
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable

xvii. ln respect of Cash Losses:

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and in immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. ln respect of Resignation of Statutory Auditors:

There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors occurred during the
year'

xix. In respect of Material uncertainty:

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial

statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based

o,n our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
(. attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
)

a,

b.



the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. ln respect of Transfer to fund specified under Schedule Vll of Companies Act, 2013

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vll to the Companies
Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section i.35 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year to us,

FoTDSRVANDCOLLP

Chartered Accountants

,CI'

o

(Firm Registration No. 006993N/N500073)

Sanjay Ku

Partner

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 30/05 12022

Membership No. 092678
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"Annexure B" referred to our Report of Even Date to the members of Loantap creditProducts Private Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March,2022

Report on the lnternal Financiat controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of sub-section 3of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,,)

we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Loantap credit
Products Private Limited (the "company") as of March 3L, zo2z in conjunction with ouraudit of the lnd AS financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for rnterna! Financial controts

The Management of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial re[orting .rit.ri. established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (the "lCAl"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lCAl and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reportin g ..r--,..-i,,-1.::..



Meaning of lnterna! Financiar controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controt over financial reporting is a process designed toprovide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (L) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

lnherent Limitations of tnternal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at M arch 31, 2022, based on the criteria for interna I fina ncia I control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the lCAl.

FoTDSRVANDCOLLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 006993N/N5OOO73)

Membership No. 092678
(UD|N:) 22o12bA8 A y / (4|tgtt c +Place: Gurgaon



LO ANT AP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

ClN: U65910PN1996PTC101188 

Statement of Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balance other U,an cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables 
Loans 
Investments 
Other financial assets 

Total finilncial assets 

Non-financial Assets 

Current tax assets (Net) 
Deferred tax assets (Nel) 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Other non-financial assets 

Total non-financial assets 
TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 
Payables 
(l)Trade payables 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(II)Othcr payables 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Debt securities 
Bonowings (oU,er U,an debt securities) 
Subordinated Debts 
Olher financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

Non-financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Olher non-financial liabilities 
Total non-financial liabilities 

EQUITY 
Equity share capital 
OU,er equity 
Total eouitv 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

For D S R V AND CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 
Parlner 
Membership No.: 092678 

UDIN: ,,oq:i,_� 18AK�4Bli4 � 1
Place : Gurugram 
Dale: 30/05/2022 

Note 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12 

12 
13 

14 

15 
16 
17 
18 

19 
20 

21 
22 

3 

(Rs i11 Lnkhs) 

As al As at As al 
March 31 2022 March 31 2021 April 12020 

2,963.15 3,725.26 457.12 

2,064.50 503.90 250.09 

523.41 321.23 117.27 
29,996.27 26,246.89 25,960.78 

104.18 
3,282.72 938.06 780.46 

38,934.23 31,735.34 27,565.73 

43.96 24.07 6.32 
330.68 350.67 92.39 
30.95 76.62 117.25 

422.42 478.93 
8.37 29.74 10.49 

413.96 903.51 705.39 
39,348.19 32,638.85 28,271.11 

-

11.67 11.59 3.94 

479.83 184.96 222.49 

124.39 906.06 80.86 

8,424.98 2,724.28 

18,242.57 17,011.60 15,393.28 
500.00 500.00 500.00 
12.25 55.97 121.00 

27,795.69 21,394.46 16,321.58 

48.42 47.55 30.47 
189.59 79.39 62.17 
238.01 126.94 92.63 

715.76 715.76 715.76 
10,598.73 10,401.69 11,141.14 

11,314.49 11,117.45 11,856.90 

39,348.19 32,638.85 28,271.11 

For and on behalf of the Loantap Credit Products Private Limited

Satyam Kumar 
Director 
DIN:07461961 
Place: Pune 
Dale : 30/05/2022 

Vikas Kumar 
Director 
DIN:03112103 
Place: Pune 
Dale: 30/05/2022 

� 
�----

Company Secretary
M. No. A43689
Place: Pune 

Date: 30/05/2022 



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U65910PN1996PTC101188 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars Note 

Revenue from operations 
Interest income 23 
Fees and commission income 24 
Other Operating Income 25 
Total revenue from operations 

Other income 26 
Total income 

Expenses 
Finance costs 27 
Impairment on financial instruments 28 
Employee benefit expenses 29 
Depreciation and amortization 12 
Other expenses 30 
Total Expenses 
Profit before tax 
Tax expense: 
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax (credit)/charge
Total tax expense 
Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 
Tax impact on above 

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods: 

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Investment 
Tax impact on above 

Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share 31 
(Nominal value per share Rs. 10) 

Basic (Rs.) 
Diluted (Rs.) 

Summary of Significant accounting policies 3 

Year ending 
31 March 2022 

5,754.28 
330.87 

50.40 
6,135.54 

73.09 
6,208.64 

3,265.17 
1,013.29 

685.55 
102.61 
888.59 

5,955.21 
253.43 

49.30 
16.64 
65.94 

187.49 

8.72 
(2.27) 

4.18 
(1.091 
9.54 

197.04 

8.73 
2.73 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date. 

(Rs in Laklzs) 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

4,232.21 
168.49 
142.78 

4,543.48 

-

4,543.48 

2,765.55 
1,629.29 

455.76 
102.40 
586.73 

5,539.72 
(996.24) 

3.30 
(258.75) 
(255.45) 
(740.79) 

1.81 
(0.47) 

-

-

1.34 
(739.45) 

(34.47) 
(34.47) 

For D S RV AND CO LLP For and on behalf of the Loantap Credit Products Private Limited 

ber : 006993N/N500073 

Partner 
Membership No.: 092678 
UDIN: L2-01.2. t.11r�,,._ct6 )8%1 
Place : Gurugram 
Date : 30/05/2022 

Satyam Kumar 
Director 
DIN:07461961 
Place: Pune 
Date : 30-05-2022 

1ya"" J 
Company Secretary
M. No. A43689
 Place: Pune 
Date : 30-05-2022 

Vikas Kumar 
Director 
DIN:03112103 
Place: Pune 
Date : 30/05/2022 



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Statement for Changes in Equity 
For TTie Year Ended 31 March 2022 

Equity Share Capita] 

Particulars 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
G,,an�cs in the Share Capital during the year 
Balance at the end of the Year 

Particular 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Profit after Tax 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total 

Transfer to Reserve Fund in Terms of Section 45-IC(l) of 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

PMticuJar 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 
Profit after Tax 
Other Comprehensive Income 

Transfer to Reserve Fund in Terms of Section 45-IC(l) of 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 

As per our report of even date. 

For DS RV ANDCOLLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Sanjay Kumar Agraw 
Partner 
Membenhip No.: 092678 

'6993N/N500073 

UDIN: g_ 'l. 01.2...t-, M-1'. y(J_g I� 4 b 7
Place : Gurugram 
Date : 3�2022 

(Rs in Laklzs/ 

For the year ended 31 March 
2022 2021 

214.89 214.89 
-

214.89 214.89 

Reserve and Surplus 

Securities Retained Reserve Fund 
Premium Earning as per RBI 

11,464.22 (1,070.51) 7.98 
187.49 

11,464.22 (88.3.02) 7.98 

(37.50) 37.50 

11,464.22 (920.52) 45.48 

Reserve and Surplus 

Securities Retained Reserve Fund 
Premium &ming as per RBI 

11,464.22 (331.06) 7.98 
(740.79) 

1.34 -

11,464.22 (1,070.51) 7.98 

-

11,464.22 (1,070.51) 7.98 

For and on behaH of the Loantap Credit Products Private Limited 

w-
Satyam Kumar 
Director 
DIN:07461961 

M. No. A43689
Place: Pune 

Date : 30--05-2022 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income On 

Debt Securities 
Through OCI 

9.54 
9.54 

9.54 

Other 
Comptthensive 

Income On 

Debt Securities 
ThroughOCI 

1--V'-
VikasKumar 
Director 
DIN:03112103 
Place: Pune 
Date : 30-05-2022 

Total Other 

Equity 

10,401.69 
187.49 

9.54 
10,598.73 

10,598.73 

,-

Total Other 
Equity 

11,141.14 
(740.79) 

1.34 
10,401.69 

10,401.69 



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U65910PN1996PTC101188 

Statement Of Cash Flow For The Year Ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 
(Loss)/ Profit before tax: 
Adjustments : 
Interest income 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Net gain/Joss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Impairment on financial instruments 
Finance costs 

Cash inflow from interest on Joans 
Cash outflow towards finance costs 
Operating Profit before workin� capital changes 
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets: 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
Other receivables 
Loans 
Other financial assets 
Other non financial assets 
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other non financial liabilities 
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 
Less: income taxes paid (net of refunds) 
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities• 
Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 
Investment in units of Money Money Fund 
Purchase of property, plant and equipments 
Sale of intangible assets 
Net cash (used in)/ from investing activities 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities : 
Proceeds from debt securities 
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Repayment of debt securities 
Repayment from borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Net cash (used in)/ from financing activities 
Net Jncrease/(Decrease) In Cash and Bank Balances 
Add : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash in Hand 
Balance with banks: 

- In current accounts 
- In fixed deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 

Total 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

Asal Asal 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

253.43 (996.24) 

(5,754.28) (4,232.21) 
102.61 102.40 
(73.09) -

1,013.29 1,629.29 
3,265.17 2,765.55 

5,304.52 4,207.46 
(2,877.69) (2,812.42) 
1,233.97 663.83 

(1,560.60) (253.81) 
(202.18) (203.95) 

(4,312.91) (1,890.66) 
(2,344.66) (157.60) 

21.36 (19.24) 

(486.72) 795.32 
(43.72) (65.03) 

9.59 18.89 
110.19 17.23 

(7,575.69) (1,095.02) 
(69.19) (21.05) 

(7,644.88) (1,116.07 

(100.00) -

(0.42) (5.25) 
439.00 -

338.58 (5.25) 

12,419.39 2,771.14 
17,202.74 13,719.38 
(6,966.12) -

(16,111.83) (12,101.06) 
6,544.19 4,389.46 
(762.11) 3,268.14 

3,725.26 457.12 
2 963.15 3 725.26 

0.27 0.48 

1,062.72 3,724.79 
1,900.16 -

2,963.15 3,725.26 

-The above stalcmcnt of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. 

-Components of cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in note no. 4. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date. 
For D S RV AND CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI firm Registration Number: 006993NfNS00073 

Membership No.: 092678 
UDlN, 1.1.�,J.b1 uv. ... � 
Place : Guru 
Date: 30/05 

* 

t� 
Director 
DIN:07461961 
Place: Pune 
Date: 30/05/2022 

Place: Pune
M. No. A43689 

Date : 30/05/2022 

Director 
DIN:03112103 
Place: Pune 
Date : 30/05/2022 



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART
FoR rHE yE;R ;;;;:f ilH#)DALoNE 

FTNANCTAL srArEM ENrs (continu ed)

Summary of Sigrrificant Accounting policies

I Corporate information

Loantap credit Product Private Limited ('the company, or,LCppL,) (formerly known as Lotus sree Filco
private Limited) is a companv ;;;;;;.H; r.aj, 

"i-, 
l,rvri, i# H;". the provisions or ri 

" 
io*p*i""fi'"''-ti,t":,3:ffI',H,iii.ffi*flH*nanciar comfa"y i;ii,i&l as derined ,,,au.,".iioi-as-h orbusiness or p.oriair,g unsecured Ioans to rr,rj-1":::-1*epting.public 

deposits. The Company is in thebusinesses. rvq. tu saraneo customers and business loans to,^"I JJ;;" "'

The Company,s registered office is at 103 1st flMuha,a.ht,,,1r,,ai""r ri" p.*"ffi#,.;ilff#i..ffi#ffi:":l?i].il1r#,":H,.rrr,rr:*,

2 Basis of preparation

The financial staterr
standards (n",;;;H:'":j.::::;Iii:1*:i,leen prepared in accordance with the rndian Accounting
comply in all material respects with the u"""r.:]l']: 

c|mlanr has prepared ,r,""" ri""r,"i"l ,,"i],,'J.,,",.

ilrTl:;'ff *::,1s1*#$:1;#"""".-lr,Hii*JJ.{111ffi ff IT#:;'.T,'":;ri:,}i}R
Deposit,ur.r"g ffi".,y .o";";".,kj*:rli+:1!T:?,Tr^T,1;"[';'JffitT::,lii:ln#h;"
directions rerated to rmpremer",a" .i,Jr" i_.rr*.*r r;;;;;;;;;r:raed ror Non-Banking Financiar
Companies (NBFcs).in, a-cc*a""." -r,r,rrrriint no,u,.r.-n no. RBI/ 2b1 9-201 1 70 DoRNBFC). cc. pD. N o.l,oe / 22. to.toi i zoii _n;#; r, March 2020

These financial statements for the year ended 3r. March 2022are the first the Company has prepared in

li,iH::":* Iffi"ifilj'*""xfi r.::f i"'r,a*s.]* i"*ilff" March 2021,ihu co-pu.y
the companies a.i iors,."ua,.8;il;;;;##i::)I1i:tTffi1,xf,,i::;J,i[i,iJ[;,ri",.i:lr:;""
,."?Ii.x,,:1$$:"T,:q 

s,*a",i,io*";i*"i"o"i; di;;;il",G;:L",tu, Directions (hereinafterAccoun'lingsia;;;iiiia{ffi }#'J#rtri:fl{'fi 'Hlil"}f"Ti1t.T',j#.*,"
[ffl,1:ii1iI:J1",fl:[Tjtj"il"'"ffi iur po'itio,,,Ji,,u,,Ii"i-0".i;,-u,.,"" 

and cash nows or the

I5lffil1;::t:I:it'ni'" been prepared on the accruarand going concem basis. rhe rnd As accountins

*{:ffi#*i:ffi -}11;:1sx,t,TJil:il?lt;'ffi ,ffi'.'".;E*tri:",xTff ;i,ffi :[il"","
The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also the functional::firf:",*,1?ill,T,I *""TrS.,.[::m*1*::ir*i:}x,J;I#o"."o o,, u hi",o.i"ui 

"1", 
bu,i,,

Accounting policies n"::I:1 t:Tistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard isffiffii: f::::d 
or a revision to the existing al"o,,,,i,s ,.u.,;;;;;;;j" 

"".;u,r. in the accounting poriry



2,1 presentation 
of Financial Statements

The, Company presents its financial statensettremeni*fu ,,3*."il;;;;"H|.Ifi 
"1f ,:#,.:",,i*:*,y;fftX;r,,:flIr;:H?.i;date (non-curr".rq i. pr"r"ntJ- rv.i ii,m;r"r*r" s'r*"i *I,i",y-r1and Loss a".o*i* p."p*ua

and presented,inthe format pre*rto"ia,r," o*rr,"rlilr.r.,?ii,i'iu,o,nu 
companies a"i,-i* grr,"

i!.ofifl I1T:g*Un*X"HU:-.::ry..;.i^ui";}d"',,"tementorcashFrowshasbeen
requirements *1,1'g"ry",iffi ;ffiTfl:"'j.Tj, fJ#[:Ht "t c",i now"i.'*" o,*.",*
:x""*::ru;:,r=mr j{H,T;;ffi 

:i{f,llu',t":,i,{fl ir:l*r"i:ffi _"SEBI (Lisring Obligations 
""O 

O*"r"r"H,
prudentiar **" u" orReserve il;;;;:::,Jffiil,]r["iJ[:.ff;rj]i,1.,.q,;;;;;;;;",

^ _, !:*-*, of significant Accounting policy
3.1. Financial Instruments

Financial instrur
*'u i*t r*"r,iil:l:"lJ:fi:*sed when the Company becomes a party to the contractuar provisions of

3.1.(i) Financial assets
A. Classification

iTnTil'i:::'J',fi ::J;il'":l;:ill;'n","l'","ingmeasurementcategories:
statement of proiit 

".,a 
loss); and ,t or" ,o u""ul'e 

(either through other.comprehensive income, or tfuough
The classificaiion is based ; ,h" C;;;; 

measured at amortised cost.
contractual terms of the cash flows. 

business model for managing the financiar assets and the

:,ffi"ff:#:i:ffi"i:t;-:',,t 
fiiru 

and losses wiu either be recorded in statement or prorit and ross or

lffi::iT:fj]equitv instrume"t'u"".tur"iri"d 
as at Fair vatue through profit and Loss (FVTPL), unress thepresent,,o,"o,"Jilii+i"T?#Tif if ;,11j:il;Ifl:*J::";..X1erects on initiar recosnition to

B. Measurement

At initial recognition' the 
-Company 

measures a-financiar asset at its fair value plus/minus the transactioncosts that are directly attributatle il ,r," ,.*iri,io., or *," rira..i;;;;:;" ** of financiar assets ca*ied at
fair value through piofit tt l'; ;;;;;J;"'losts are expensed i., s,ui"rr".,, of profit and loss as incurred.
(i). Loan & Advances

::::"flTilff:i1;TH:*::,tr"111*11:ends on the company,s business moder for managing the

Business model: The business model reflects honows. rhat r',,r,Iir,., th" companyr;r*,""j"'i:,':;Ti:l,l"IT:r";".l:.H:,:ilrT:ilJ?,fffi:,ilLi
or is to collect both the contractJ"r 

""'r, 
nl*" i,, .Tl 4"-, il;;;;;e sare of assets. If neither offfi; 

applicable' then the flnarrci;i;;;;,"ssified 
as p*, or:o6,-*; uusiness moder and measured at

6JRA

wNgj9tli9



SPPI: Where the business
.urt, no* an; ;."ilffa*"oel 

is to hold assets to collect contuactuar cash flows or to corect conhactual
paymentsorprincipar"" j*,*.,".,!firHii:$;:,.l:.,,ffi 

**lxkh::*#lT#ti11.#
i!;i!;'.iffi::X.H1ffiiffff,,*ii:J;:il*,ll 

ata,il"nains;;;;;","* i e interest incrudes o.Jyconsistent with a basic leiding arrangement. where an:ltt.o*it 
lending risis and a profit margin that isvolatility that are inconsr"r""i-r,r, ui-.r;"';;'i,:t::t contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or*"u".rr"d 

", 
r"i. rlir" ir,.;"*:,I;:*,iT;cJendint a'angement, the related ri.,an"iar asset is crassified and

n::1."ilH:jl#:r" Companv classifies its debt instruments into one of the fouowing three
i) Amortised cost

The Company classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the foilowing criteria are met:;l li::::Tl:fi11}[ffi:f,T:t{1i*;J,;f$i:t+;'#T.i*.*::;i: *,rac,uaicash n.*., u,,ainterest on the principat outstanding. 
r!!r'Lq qqres to cash llows that are solely paymeno .t pr*.ip"r aaaFinancial assets at amortised cost influde loans, trade receivables and other financial assets that are herd

with the objective of collecting t;;;ilHR'ow". aft"r ini,,rr.""rrr"*i"t at fair value, the financial
assets are measured at amortised *" *i.gil" 

"ir"ctive 
interest rate-rr*ir 

"*.0, less impairment.Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account anytisrount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integrar part of.the effe;;J;;";";," raiol ,r**",,,i."-]lr,*rro"o in finance income inffi:[TilTi:1il:'::l: t'* n 

" 
i*""""**;;;- fi;;#;;';:::il*, in the statement orprorit

ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD

ff:r*T:,1i:i::ffiy' for corection of contractuar cash flows and for serring the financial assets,
Movements in il";;;;i1"-tepresent 

solely payments of prt".tpa 
""Jr"i.r*i

I*iir##""H#i[#rirc:;ryii;$"#ifj.:::ffi x::#,::n"j,,?.:tr.'
l:':li."ulil;;;';;""ilTj 3iIJ.1ffi;ffi*:Tf#15[#lj. r","up.uuiou"ry ,".os,,i""a';;tr
rnstruments at FVOCI are not subject a J;;;;nt assessment. r gains/(losses). Equity

iii) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTpL)

,*i?"+lai: 
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVoCI are measured at fair varue through profit or

Financial assets at fair value tfuough profit or loss are carried in the Balance sheet at fair varue with net
changes in fair value Presented * I*t"' 1g,i*;I;"*" in statement .ip."i* 

""Tr.ss. 
Interest income from

these financiar assets at fair varue ,n.rdp;.Ii, .;ii* u." included separatery in other income.
C. Determination of fair Value

The Company uses valuati
data are Jr"ffi;;;#n 

techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficienttheuseor,""il.;;;;;ff ,::ffi #[HtrilrJ]:,:1"r".1.,j[lTl*"iH:',".ffi 
#,r#ilffi,:.Tare classified based on a hierarchy .f *f"",1." ,..frrlnrr"r, 

", 
summarised below:



3.1 (i0

3.1 (iii)

Level 1 financial inshumpnr. - TL^-^ -_.r-

*$l*ii:*l,rxi*i"l#l::lriiilii;:,tr;fi ;:,"::::r"r;1i:H.::r:r:",,.T::
vorume and riquiditv 

"r,r," 
ia".,..i;iJ; ffi;::::1f;i:,",[{s"5;,:r,::' ,ui,r"illl.. il "

quotes available on the balance rrr"ut aut* 
"r .auurucu anq when there are binding and exercisable price

Level 2 financial inshr

xtl**73#j:ffi :tft?;ll"n:*""t:Tti+.ilf 
lffi ffi","1.*,::il"=:.fr !ffi "",,,,u,"

prices for ident-;; 
*o"t include quoted prices fo. 

"i^ilu, ""r"ir * it"iru*, in active markets, quotedint"re"t',t", a;ffi'11T#,Xl;i:ffiffiif'*a ou'"*"it" i,'p-,,; #:l than quoted prices such asrequired for the cJnditio".-i"*ii"^ rrff::ff:."ill'"L:xJ,:'r*:^1i:,1,ffLi$H,il"r,:,1:;;'J"comparable to the valued instrument rr"*""oli"r.r, adju"tments a.";; on unobservabre inputswhich are significant to the entire;;;;;;; i'hu crorp will ctassify the instruments as Level 3.
Level 3 financial instrur
measurement a, ,holu.'"ttt 

-Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the

For assets and Iiabilities that are recogrrised in the financial statements on a recdetermines whether transfers have ".'"";;";*n revers in the hierarch, o"1TT_i-0":rs, 
the Company

g:iff"*"?L,lto'*''"p""t'"ti" "isi,:;,i. *. r,o *,," 
^"".,,J#"t as a whore) at the end or

Recogrrition of Interest income
The company calculatesinterest,income by applying the effective interest rate (,EIR,) to the gross camrineamount of financial assets carried ut r*o.tir"'a'.Jsi excruding credit impaired advances.The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated f
lyTr:I instrument * *r,u., appropriate, u "nor,u.llll,t'lh.'IIo*t 

through the expected life of the
The EIR is calculated by taking into account u,",u d,r.L:::o' 

to the.net carrying amount of the financiar asset.
an integral part of the EIR. ' --lount or premium on acquisition, f""r *d.;;;;;;"
The Company calculates :

other than..Jrl,*0"*"Xir:"t]il"*:?:l'r,'r-tr the EIR to the sross ca*yingamount of financiar assets
company *..*;J;,;rest income." ,h";;;;#:LTi:itrH;i:*::::*l.l*,f.",1f*ll"
If the financiar assets are no longer credit impaired, the Company carcurates the ibasis. urrv.rtu' ure LomPany calculates the interest income on a gross
Interest income on financial assets classified as FVTpI .

gain/(loss) on fair value changes. - rc recog"nised using the contractual interest rate in net

(a) Impairment of financial assets
The Company records allowance for expected credit rosses for ar loans, other financial assets not herd atFVTPL' together with loan commitm"rri" u.d finan.,ur gr,u.urrt"" contracts.

i+'.",:f:,T:fl:Hilff:,""ffi':lllJ[nffi|;':1T1,eor 
credit rosses. rhe probab,ity is determined by

losses are recatculated f..; ii;";;; ;"ffi::':':::_tl*1t"t. on a significant increase i.,.."ait ,trr.,-..uaii
rhe ECL a,,owance,, 0,,"J ffi Jl:Jffi:ilil:]* :";:;" ; ;" 

",,", (the,iretimeexpected credit ross), 
"r"":1n".1" r,-u u""n 

".rig;iii"rrt rr,.r"u"" r" *"arir,"r..iice originatiory in whichcase, the allowance is based on the 12 month"l;ilc*t.el credit loss.

Both lifetime and 12 months ECL are calculated on either an individuar basis, depending on the nature of the
undertying portforio of financrur i.,rt r-".,tr. ;;;"*pu^y hu, 

"rt"brirl;;;|otcy to perform an3,.jf;,:l:t::j:: 
end or each reportr.'s p"rioJ, o1 *r,"ir,"i.ri"#iu1,il;1.l':",.s credit risk has increased

remaining rife 
"r 

,." ;;lll1tlltl",l;?l;Hi1i:: ."e chanse ," ,r* 
"'r.,r ]"f,,rt o..,.,t,;;:;;*'

. stage r, sl"g. i;Jti!" s u" foltowr, tbove process, the company categorises its roans into

./;"

a\ / t-<,

ahJ#

o



s.l (iv)

3.1 (v)

3.1 (vi)

Stage 1: Financial ar
in 'Jtase 1' r;;;;:':!;fffi ;:I#","'ffi'l:ease in credir risk has been observed are considered to beStage 2: When a loar
an allowance r.",h;'r:l*1il::J:T:1il:'r:crease in credit risk since orisination, the company records
has improved ana the toanha";;;.il#;;Ht3[:f"* also include-fac,ri,i"', *r.I.",il]J."a'i.,"u
Stage 3: Loans consider"a 

", 
stug; i;J:r*;,:lifetime expected .r"Ji, lorrur. --'-" ^'npaired' The Company recogrizes an allowance for the

3;irlfr;;::il:a"Hr (orR) of roan accounts ailowed bv.RBr vide circurar resorution framework forincreaset";i;;"T j:$:.ffi ;iiJ;l,i:;ffi:*j*,;;;#;fi ;.dt"h",;;;i;;;;
(b) Wrire offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the chances of recoveries are remote.

i.{tiry':Tfl.J:ffi:::*ilfi*ltl":li# "i,r 
b" 

"'b,""; ;'";;.';en, ac,ivi,ies under the
are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

mt legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made

Derecognition

A. Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contracfuar rights to the cash flows from the financial

it!{ixffi ;:1T"1'":';:l ::"'r'rx';*:l,l*,t" to receive caJ;i;;, il"., the asset o. hu, 
""",,*"J u.arransement and the companv has t,",,,r"..oJ,J1":l,TilT,fili"l?JJ.;;T*::;y"ffJHi,:,ffii:,

asset is derecognised, the io^p".,y d;;;;;;;;;"y continuing involvement in the same.

ii;.';n:u:H[1:i::fi1H:1,:'fii::H]rlj'e 
partia, assignment route and accordinsry

retain any control. If the C
a servicing asset o. 

" ".;:i.oiffr1lffi"#T*:i]:tj#::i[;tf:T#i:,,]:]:li'l::lT:"i#:::L..recognised at rair varue ir th"J"" ,o uJ,"""i";;;;i'::;1tT:: *;[:'fH:z;ffiff::.j;1.jil.ff
:"",1i,#::H::,X*t.*i:m::1:,"ljXj,,*f ;;ffiIl':J1*,,,""o.,,pu*"tio.,r*.iu
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference b,

r"":"y,.,Jl,Ti,i;lfJ[]:*{1"J[',H;'ff:"#:ffy""."#"::]?#'":T:iliiiiii::*[:*."Ioss that had u"u"i".7s*r"d in oCr is recognised'in;Ii'#iyrj-umed) and riil *y ""*Jrti";;; ",
B. Financial liabilities
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Classification

The financial liabilities are

;i:iIii;[il::.#lH]1,*iil$,:*1]i],#:1':it"ffiT;ilH1T:,,,

Measurement

#i:T,T]"":J'.",1',':fi,ffi;tr;,""tffi:l[J'.H-].r* and, in the case or roans, borrowings and
The company classifies all financiar fiauilities as sll"""qr"r.,,ry- *easured at amortised cost, except fori'ffi[:,'TiiiH,lJil;3;t'H::rii3;:;,",;iii"'"ffi0,r**,,i,'"r"a,,,i-i",,,1i'uu"*,ut*.
The Company's financiailiabilities include-tr"a. p"y"ui"", borrowings including bank overdrafts and otherfinancial inshuments' Thu m"u'*"ment of financiairi"biliti", depends on their llassification, as described

/dR[',"'"
(@g
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3.1 (vii)

3.1 (viii)

3.1 (ix)

a) Financinl liabilities measured at amortiseil cost
Financial liabilities are ir
measured at amortised .ritiallY 

recoSnised at fair value, net of transaction cost i
costs and the amount o 

rost, usint the EIR method. Any differenc" 64r"ur, 11.,u1t1_ledand 
are_subsequently

bonowins.'- uue on settlement orredempti"" 
"ri"*"'rr.;rffi:'"Hl"T:1"j'il:i$fX|;.J."

For riab,ities designated 
T-r-u-Tt'fair 

varue gains/ Iosses attributabre to chanrrecosnized in ocl. These sri""/tr;;;;- ffi"-j-::":::.i:1'10:t"bl: .o chanses in own credit risk are

:?:i:r;+.ilfih?T1ffi:ifl:1il,t',,""":uentrv 
transreir"ed;;;;JL"", orprorit and rossvalue of such Iiabtty ;" .;:;;"d';;:H::il'J"",sain or Joss within equity. au .tr.,"i .r,ur,!"" ,i""*yf -;;;t;;;il:,1;::::ff;xxffi i.:,""il:;":l::*ru,*i::{x*,hasno,designa,ed

Derecognition of financial liabilities

#T:l'#^:11ltffiff;::"ised when the obligation under the riabiliry is discharsed or cancerred or

ltfi:Iff.fl :;T$i.":'T,.ffi :lt?,lJ,,,ff [Ti,,kH,Hiffi i]i"',rff fl i#"T;:##;
,r," ai,".",.",;;il"*.:.i"J::ffiH::T:l:'*$::: r_tl$l;"f:ru:li:lT,rialirity, and

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and tl

:liT,:jffH::,":",,f"::i"1','*tr;ffilti*.ff[::il:i::*[:Til:::,ilji:::ji:.."",[:1i:yj,

Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassifiedsubsequent to ah:]. hlo] recognition, except in the period in which the
Companv changes its business *.r"r ;;;;#g;ng rinunciar 

""";,:.;.,.,iu;.rilruo,rn ", are not reclassified.
3.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at.fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized whenf:i;tT.t":[fffl':1::l oil;;-;;"; uv.o"*r".i"g 
" 0,".i,"0 good or service (i.e. an

when (or "r, 0",.,.".i* jffi:ilH,; ..*::l**:**":H":I*ij:.;
Iff;:;;; r"ce (excluding 

"",iriu*" oir,'.,"0,"-""*ta*"ri""j,r,".i-"1i.""ir.o 
that performance

The Company applies the five_step approach for recognition of revenue:. Identification of contract(s) rari*,.""i._"rrr'"' "'
. Identification of the ser
' o.*.*i"rii"" 

";'.',HIT;r#mance 
obligations in the conhact;

. Allocation of transactio
' Recognition o, r"uur,.,"1111"," 

m: separate performance obligations; andwhen (or as) each performance obligatiJn i, ,uii.f*.

^g
e
W

ffi
w



(i) Interest income:
Lrterest income is recognized using the effective intere$t rate (refer note no. 3.1 (ii))
(ii) Fees and Commission income:

I*i:m:l;::',ff:,""Til':nH"l,1T}::fli:l;:frr#".ards renderins oradditionar services to its
Dishibution income..
arrangements. Th" ir't 

earned by selling of services and products of other entities under dishibutiony";",ry;; #ff:il'"il;1fff;,'ili:1flffj;" """'"".i,r,1i*'." ii"u 
" 

other entities,,,ry".t to
Foreclosure charges are collected from loan custrrecogrrised on rea"lisation. -rmers for early payment/closure of loan and are

(iii) Income from direct assignment:

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactionportrorio u,'d thu appricabre rat"e;i;ffi.#il::,:1,il,;."T;l;jffI:HT:;i,,ff::ffI:l$"#fr"
as the right of excess interest spread 6rs1. rr,"-irirre EI6 basis ,h";;;;; cash flows on execution of the
transaction' discounted-at tr'" uppri.r'ur"'r"i"'""a"r"0 ii,3 *1,11i-," 

"r.,.'.fr"u.l recorded upfront in the
statement of profit ancr loss. us "r"rrri"l ""i'"ojrr,"o for ECL and exrpected prepayment.

3.3 Expendifures -Finance costs
Borrowing costs on financiar liab,ities are recognised using the EIR (refer note no. 3.1 (ii))

3.4 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank, cash_on hand, cheques in hand, remittances in transit and:H::ffi :,1Hffi ;',",#t*.T'f,?:*i.;ilrJtt"""fl -.:H::rffi uu.,ro,,u.a,.uJ,,;"J"-'

3.5 Property, plant and Equipment

ii'Jg#?1""::1,:;:nls::#:r:",L1cost, 
net of accumurated depreciation and accumurated

ili::i,:ffi,,:,"*l*:**l:i:,",*il:[:Tll?i.,.;,.",ffi::fi:,::,""_,;:*lr*nr"""lu
Subsequent expenditure related to an item oI proper

;*ffi:T."j1;'"X."111*;;;ilffi ;",'#;:li:,fi,iT,I;ilX.,g:: jl,o:[:f *.,,
and maintenan.u u*f-"-.,-iPu*es 

on existing the Property, iPlant und sqr,p*'";i incruding day-to-day repairil;;ililil;fr1":'J.T:1,1":::::::*l',T"Tarts are charsed ,o ,i'" 
"iui"-",,t or prorit *a ro., ri.

Gains and losses arisine from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the netfiili11'i:'"",T:T:.:h];7*;;ffi'il;J:" and are,"."r.,i;;i;;e statement of profit and ross

Depreciatiott on property, plant and equiprnent

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual valurappropriate. Based on technic;i;;;;;:r":;':"": *: re,iewed at each reporting date and adjusted if,,,"fuiri,",,";;;;.iJT::l:#lrjl.ffjil1T5:T:ll*:triltr**..fl;1"..,t"ff,*J:I#'

ffi,
,Y9



Particulars
Office Equipment
Computers & peripherals
Furniture and Fixtures

Estimated useful life by the Company
5 years
5 years
10 years

3.6 Intangible assets

ilnxflff:*;;:::,H:ffi:::Hffi,xj,H,:it:::ognised at cost andsubsequenny carried at cost ress

[:'ff;ii:,T:]:*:lfiT:,,,"",#Jill*:ii:]j].',it!ffiil:]!,?i!1,T}1'"'.1T:t]**l;-
appropriate. ---o-v'v q'osrD drts revlewed at each financial year end and adjusted o."#*r, u
Gains or losses arising from derecogrrition of an intangibre asset are measured as the difference between the,:::ffl.""'?i::::;i"";l*ih',T]*,"-"",fr "r,n":;.;;;;,":'"#ed in the statement orprorit and
Intangible assets are
years. 

amortised using straight line method as per management,s estimate over a period of 10

3,7 Impairment of non-financial assets

An assessment is done at each Balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. rf any zuch indr.",,." 

".*,o1" estimate 
"f 

th" ,";;;;;;J:H"T,rJ*:l:lT"T._r.0.
..*:"fl'Jfif,;;jue 

oirereva";;;; h;", ,1',u., ,n" ,u.",";,;i;;;i'#i *n" carq,ing varue is written

3.8 Provisio's, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

fii,:T:lo,?l:'J".".fl:::1,1h"t th" co*pu.v-has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
reriabre u,ti-ut..u,,"u'"uiliil11i:rjff.::11?T:ffiJl'il.d";,; **r" -i;;il;#:ff"j
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required tosettle the present 

"orrqi:l:.1."r.3i ".,g "r 
ar,".#rting period. rr," arr"."rir.te used to determine the

I"a. *""#t;ff;i"I 
rate that 

'"R""t" "',."'.i *uik"t u"rurr*;"i;;;;";"r" varue of money and theexpense. 
rility' The increase in the provision a". to ,r*'p*."g" 

"r 
rr,'." is recognized as interest

fi"':""I'"H:1',;;:l'If;il:::**::rTff[1]-T," is a possibre obrigation arising from past events
future events not wholly *itil th; .;; jr;iJ:^::r?ence or non-occurence of on" o, **" ,""*i"i"
events but probabrv notrequire an out ow ;;;.,;,Hi.l.l;il il:Hll:lf;,ffi:11.^l:i,T.r".,,',",il"r*,
;:j'fi::"J."#i.'"",TiJ;t':t"";;;il';'';;r ''l'il.*, 

,r*1lr*r;;ffi;,ffi:]i or .",o,,.", is remote, no

;"tffiil::tt"r[s 
are not recognised but disclosed in the financiar statements where an inflow of economic

3.9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share_are calcurated by dividing the net profit or Ioss for theshareholders by the weighred average r,,rmbu, of Eqrity shares outstanding ..ffi':.1:Hl::l?ii. "0"t"weighted average number or 
"quity"rhu."; .ri""ilr"g during the peri.J r", ,a;rr,"a for events such asi#:i:L:iilJ:;[r"","i;:;"','#T*]:l#jti"+;;"";,";##;(."r",idation orshares) tha,

For the purpose or carcuratins d,uted earnins, *. i:,;',td:::rj":,",#;ffiT:ffi*;" ;;11'fl'.iiffi:'i"1',';ffi,'f;H[1fl*til:Tb"' or 
"hu.", '","-,-",a*g d,rins the period are adjusted

@sew



3.1.0 Employee Benefits
i. Short_term benefits

_4,:f1,,,1:" 
for wages and salaries, inctudins rwithin 12 mo'*o aft", ,h" 

"";;;;h;;uurE 
nor-moDetary benefits that

recogmsed in respect of emproyees, 
""ii"." -i" 

*r'i"ltt#";;;;;*:J.T:r"ff"".t1i: H;::"j"-t*'
amounts expectei r, b" p;il-;h; #;ffi:J:,1;"il:r:r;ff fiffiting 

period *a ,," ,,,"*i,"d at theemployee benefit obligatio* ir, ti";;];";*r. Bs are presented u, .r.ru.,t

ii. post_employment 
obligations:

The Company oper--a,tes the following post_employment schemes:(a) defined benefit plans,u.t u" o"ir.iru]li,(b) defined contribution pr; 
";:h;;;i;u.ial.,t r,r,a

(a) Gratuity obligations

The Company operates defined benefit plans f
:'.1.'u:recosnised in ,h" bJ;; 

"#;il.J.,::Jl"i:i,l"Jfi:I"1T,"Hrf,; r#,g,flr#*fii,,ri,l,I*.defined benefit obligati." 
", 

,r," 
""J "J*" ,"5**,,".il;il i",l'X",* of plan assets. The defined

[:T:::"'.T:',:: 
is carcurated ;;''';; 

"'i'"il"I '"i''s ti" ;-n","0 ,-, *edit method.

*':HJ#"i"i;;";fi{h,",."igt',1":";iil ji,,,,#ffi ?:ff;*";mH".'m*';xm^
The net interest cost
obtigation ,"o,^"i,X iil:,l'"r j,ll:lg[]htl" discount rate to the net barance or the derined benerit
statement of profit and loss. 

; cost is included in employee benefit ex ense'i;;;'=''

Remeasurement gains and 
llsses-arising from experience adjustments and rare recognised in the period in which ;"";;.;;;;.:,:r::'::T1{ chalse3 in actuariar assumptions

inretain"ed "";;:;ii;;;;;H;:il;,t1,ril::il:HT:il:nffi::Hl1**":i'r*v *"Th"a"a

(b) provident fund

:'","::T""ij.T::',ri":"iF.i::*;:[::';f:tf:ijfij;:,ffj":1gfg,:1*me rhe Companv has no
payabre to the provident fund scheme Jr r"-"'r.p""ar,rre, when * "-ploy."o[Iiy.;:.ffi::::H::*"
iii. Other long_term employee benefits

Ih:'"TffX[ilffi"LT:;1";J;"il',:...f;j:.1-"::*,* rorward bevond twerve months and rong
provided ror based"on the aciuaiiar,",;;;;;'.1[,iTffi:.Hrfr:';.:::i,lTfljr1;fl!,,:#:"f;ri *"
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately ,.r."" 

" h s",1*""i.r i..ir;;;;r, and are not deferred. TheCompany presents the leave.as . .;;";i;il;i. tr," uurr.,." ,r,'"ut,irrr,l 
"rtu^t it does not have anunconditionar right to defer its 

"",ar"r"""i?.. iTmonths after the reporting date.

3.1.1 Taxes

Current Tax

Income tax expense reDresents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. Thfor the period is the tax payabre o., ttu.rr.r"r,if"riod,. taxabl"..r*" Irr"r"jrli^"Tili:"Tr:il::ff"L:-
ff,'ll;1':i::*:::11';;Hi3r'.1i1#edere*ed,".;;;,,d;u*ti""uttriuutail;;-'-'-



The current incon

Ii*.Jifffi ril,-fr ff :,Iffi f [;"Hr".tffi ]Tin:*"ffi :::',T:r#Tff ,"
where appropriate on the u**'i1",."","^"*ected to ue paia.o ,n ,ujji,tl'l?n 

It.establishes frovi"ior,"

Deferred tax

Deferred income ta

*",:*,*i*:,,r#:l[ii]!tE:iili?!1iljt1*.i:.:ffi n,i,,,f "#:i:;1,il5^,,,"1*"
transaction.,n",*Xi"T,lil:::tTf 

fi j[:i6it?ilU:X";:tl*;#jffi 
["]i,",li:f :il[T::':Jr':"t 1t" r*'1.-olil',]o "".o.,," 

,,* is determined u"ms ,u, rates (and raws) that have
rerared deferre.;"'j:l:':r'r#r*1r,1*"":ifl::*il::*;::ff:i,:i#,ili:::+:*:fl?f;I,*"" *"

Deferred tax assets €probabre,n",**.Jll.rffi:j:J;"1ff3H1',,5ffiTix?:i,.{:"."d.r#:i?::"ft:Tfi":IlJ*"
Deferred tax assets andliab,ities are ,rJ;"" ,rr"*,, 

","s"d.u",iJl::il" right to olfset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferrJ iuriuh.,.". *r"rli.',.."l""r.Lxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset *h*" ,r* 

""itry 
h* 

" 
rugrlt"J...."ii".rrn, ao offset and intends either

to settle on a ner basis, or to rearise ,il;;; r", ,"u," the riab,ity simurtaneousry.

r:'J.Tli:#fifffi1,t::-'::::8*::d T prorit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recosnised
comprehensive i..orrt" 

lncome or dkectly in equity ln this case, ,t 
" ""1" "r." 

recognised in other

.."#**;tt1x".';#l1l"llll'?;Jii,0,"",11""'I*,"*";,;;;dwithrespe*toreasonabre

MAT Credit

XtiliE::"'.T:;?,Tr,'ii::":?T;J:*? 1ed1 is recosnized as current tax in the statement or prorit
asset only when and to the extent there is convin.1l 1"t'. 1*' in respect of MAT paid. is ;.;;;;;
1qxgrins*reperioa-rorwr,,.H,r,"r,rei",""il.::i jii1il:l:.trJ5iiT:il.1lllT,l:iHffi.,,fi
y*H:H;:":,H:1,T#::Tffi':il,",l"i*r. u"r""."H;",;Ji written down to the 

"*tu,,ithu

3.12 Leases

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at tost, whicf comprises the initial ,*"*", 
"r,r,. Iease riability adiustej forany lease Payments made at or before il".;;;;;""r"ent date, prus any i.ritia ai.u"t 

"osts 
incurred and an:I'f;ffi:iril:itil11l"1;T];",T:fiff ::1"T";;##";"',#:i" under,ying ,,"u, o,.r,uii,u

The right-of-use asset is syfllueltlr depreciated using the shaight-line method from the commencementdate to the end of the useful life 
"r 

t# ffi"i-r'"I urr"a or the en-d of the rease term. The estimated useful[:Til3i:$:::il:"" "* determini o., *'" *.,,. basis as ,n"* 
"i,r," ,nrerryins assets. rn additioru

,..,,"r-ruru*u.,";;iil,::::f:;11;*0""0 bv impairment r**", ir 
""v, "ii'ra;r","i r,, ."rtJ- 

- ' ' '

llJ:::::?ffi;:n:1,:T:]#.os.,i,i,,s a right-or-use asset and a reaseriab,ity exceptror:
- Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

:HlTijt" 
permitted in Ind AS 116 for low value assets and short term reases has been adopted by the



3.13 Employee Share Based plan

Share-based comDenr
r""h"d;;r;" ftI;;,:t':" 

benerits are provided
.,ur,".rof iiol,;ff ,"."#,i,'"'.TrJ1ffi;",j"o:Tgrff 

?,o0""*".:*r"pFinanciarThe total amount to b
inc,.dins _r;,re,"*1i,...:1;g,.i1iul:,."lt[jffi][[T:.,,T;,;:"1[i".IJ:::_i][l
:".*i:"::'*';-i11'"*."iJl1.i,'i#,'i",*.i::;;i.Freltll! conaitions. rhe totar expense isto be satisfied. 

-'- ' esung period, which is the period ov"r which ail of the specified vesting condiri.o* ur"
At the end of each oeriod, the. entity revises its estimates of the number of oobased on the non-market vesting and ".*r." "."ilfjjlt;'"*:T!t: 

of.options that are expected to vestestimates, ir u"y, in p.orit o. lorJ. '-"Jitions' It recognises the impact of th..""*i|"i. ..rs,^a

3,14 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires thserdomequartheactuar*"r,'.M;;;;##;i"T=:x,",:!:'"THf 
#.rHilJ#;i;prff :t:;:Jxr,accounting poricies. This r,ot" p.ouia"i an ;;'"#* of the areas ,hr;;;;;; 

" 
higher degree of 1ud^gement

or comprexity, and of itemswhich are -..; i*.,;;. be materiary adjusted due to estimates andassumptions turning out to be different Ur" it rJ"...rginally assessed.Information about critic
that have the most r,n rr:.lj^Yg."Tents 

in applying accounting policies, as well ,

r*0,r,,,", *,-,r,"-il:,i:11"ffi:1*;*::::,,:,rkflil*I*[iliiiT,"":"*;'jflT:J:i":::il,"T*

a) Effective rate of interest

The company recognises interest income/expense using a rate of retum that represents the best estimate of
;.',:Ti:ilTlr1"",t"lTm:*'the 

expected uui,,i"*,r iir..rr."";;;;;)i"'u"^ *o recosnises the errect or
ir"'r"a*sf ';p'f ffi i1ill"*,il",:ff HT::"."^:[$:triffi ***i**::#*iHi#I-."::,
ilifl:ff :"T:.T*r,*;:;1,*":hu*1,;*k##,rrn*i:*:nexpec,edchanses,.

b) Impairment of financial assets

The recognition and meazurement of ECL is highly comprex and involves the use of significant judgement

iifi::'fr::T*Il,ffiXrffi:'lm'::loiffiou.* 
and timing orrutu.. ca,hrrows and coilIterar

factors of the ECL mod"r"thui,.u 
".*il",J ;:il1,H;:#:il"",,i: tr#;Tllx;:ilj:,*"ai,.i"r.-x"v

' The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk' segmenration oI financiar.ass"tr *#;;;;d;li"u"r"o on a colrective basis' Development of ECL models, i".rrd;;;hu-J"rar.'t rr"ras and the choicu oi inputs' Determination of association" u"t*"".Lu".oi.'o'rio'-i..."rru.io, u'a, 
".l.orlr. ^puo, 

such as,TillJ?{Ui:lT"JXt,;:lt?'J1[8,]y- }r".t o^ p,oru;G;i"iffi;,t 
(pD), Exposure at. Selection of forward_look.

economic inputs into ,n" tllltilllleconomic 
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the

*,lllH:;i:1"'"lT''policy to regularlv review its moders in the context of actuar loss experience and

(a
*tv^



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[TrTJ?m]rx.s1:,?i#nrr#"o".oNEFrNANcrALsrArEMENrs(continued)

Bank balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents above

Note 4 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ir q.[urars
I

l.
lucrdcewlthbmks 

-

l- In cuent accounts

Note 5 - BanL h,l.--^ ^d

As at
37 Mateh2022

Ae at
31 Much 2021

As at
1 April 2020

0.27

7,062.72

1,900,15

0.48

3,724.79

0.34

456.78

Particulars

Axeddepositwithoriginarmatuityofmorethan3months 

-

ats

Vote 5 -Trade Receivables

As at
!I March 2022

AE at

-!! March 202r
As at

7 Aotil2t

1,30d'.44

760.05
184.80

319.10
7U.79
115.30

503.90 250.09

in which any dir$to! is a partner, a dhector or a member

u.d^P*r"d T;;AI;;;;j;;-;ffi

(Less): Impainnent loss allowance
Loans within India _Net - (C )

//8
'Or

2(

Kb



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[.J.1T?ffi ]rlr;ffi ,:il:f 
srANDAroNEFrNANcrALsrArEMENrs(continued)

Summary of Ioans by stage dishibution

Details of impairment of financial instruments disclosed in the statement of profit and Loss

Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL ailowances in reration to roans

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at31 March2022

1".r, I*pui.*".,tGIljllilE
N"t 

"a..ying umoiiT

As at 31 March 2021
cro." "u.ryi.llilIil1".', I-pui.-*i lfillillilliE

- 

Particulars

(i) N'"t i-pui.rn".,t lor@

4ror t.rre year ended 31 March
2022 2021

(,Ll al.lou.rtr *.itt". off dr.i.,g th 17.09 800.05
lmpairment on loans 1,030.38 829.24

1.,013.29 1.,629.29

Particulars
Gross Carrvins A

As at 31 Match 2O22
Stage 1 Stage 2 Staee 3 Total

20,359.58
1.,876.42o qurrrrx ute YeaI< 28,1,50.64

kansferstostaeel -=.....-

translerstostase2 ...=.......- 287.00 -268.39 -78.67

transfers to stase 3 -......-

-

Impact of chan gur i. .r"di t ilIillET*-?

-2,657.33 2,925.93 -269.60
-923.77 -145.30 7,069.07

-3,294.10 2,513.23 780.87

Changesi.opu^iffi
(additional disbu nt net of repayments)
r\ew creort "".^",,'o" llIilIl-ll-

4,595.38 -1.,495.57 -263.78 -6,354.72,__ _-..,"-. _" -". rrrb rrrc year, ngt oI reDavmpnts
Amounts written off during the vear

1,0,952.52 107.1,0 57.77 11.,1,77.38
As at 31 March 202i -1,030.38 -1,030.38

23,422.62 7,039.40 t,420.91 31,882.93

(Rs in Lakhs)
As at 3L March 2021

Amount- Opening Balan-
24,213.22 , ---:L-.dff6 

L2so.2sT.u.rrf"r. drr.ingEfrIi
transfers to stage 1

transfers to stage 2
transfers to stage 3

1.,441.70
_

or changes in credit risk on account of
Changes in opening credit exposures

999l,o"u] i,rb"r.:-:l ,n", of .epayments)

-6,1,47.03
_l\ew credlt e\posures during the vear, net of 7,93ffi6,mAmounts written off d

As at 31 March 2021

D
o
*
\g da



Particulars
mDa Loss AII^*

406.89r r dnsrers ouring the vear ------
Lt4ttslers tncteo-H

-

t anri"a,toatun"F

964.53 532.32 1,,903.74

38.67 -3L.06

280.70

-21,.1,0

-796.19
-7.60

rqrrDlErb to slagg J -84.51

-779.60

105.75

43.18
228.54 48.94

!r (4rrEEs rn operung credit exposures
(additiona.l disbursement net of repayments)

-219 51 964.41 850.55
22.70 40.82

-1,030.38 -1,030.38
458.24 r,886.66

Asat?
(Rs in Lakhs)

Stage 1 itage z lstase j Total
562.39 L89.20 352.10

1.7.6L 77.02 -0.58
-s1.54 52.77 7.23

-5.E1 -58.25 64.06
l^pu.tof 

"hur,g"r@
-45.74 -16.51 62.25

f #""';'#'i'r'I:# li,:j :,,y-'rt -772.48 77A 987.27 1,591.08s
52.71, 15.55ffi- 7.80 85 06

-877.09
406.89 -877.09

964.53 532.32 1.,903.74

I otal

qq rl
762.74

432.26

_ . particulars

::, 
y":,,,*lj L,rs: rlllglvgrce- Op".rine Bul.^.;-

rrqrr,Ers qulngthpw.H
1,,1,03.69

-------v-{---

Lrdrrslefs tostaooF_____________ _L
transfers rn "r.--F

-

Lrarrsrcrs to staq"ts



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NoTEsFoRMINGPARToFTHESTANDALoNEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31stMnrch2022

Note 8 - Investment

@e investments is Rs Nil (previousyear Rs Nil)

Note 9 - Other Financial Assets

Yeal: Rs Nit)
iiioi.rrl".* ollo*ance recognised on other financial assets is '

(Rs inLakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars 
I

]

As at 31

March 2022

As at

31 Match 2021

As at

1 April 2020

rR\ A t frir wrlil" t
100.00

(i) ln units ot Money IVraro

Sub-total (i)

4.18

104.18

104.18

104.18
Total (A+U,

-Out of above

h l"dt"
lO.,,t"ide Ir-tdia

104.18

Particulars

Security DePosits

Other dePosits

Advance to Parent ComPanY
I

lOthers
I

lTotal

As at 31

March 2022

As at

31 March 2021

As at

1 April 2020

23.1,4

1,445.64

t,556.98

246.96

22.04

726.23

189.79

21.93

620.78

137.75

3,282.72 938.06 780.46

Note 10 - Current tax Asset (net, t

Particulars I

lFu.." To* and Tax deducted at source

lute.T Credit Entitlement Asset
I

lLess: Provision for tax
I

lt

As at

31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2021

As at

l April 2020

85.07

8.19

(4e.30)

15.88

":'
18.20

9.97

(21.8s)

43.96 24.O7 6.32

Note 1.1: Tax ExPense

Th" cornnonents of int expense for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are:
The cotnPonents ol income tax in Lakhs

- Fr. th. Y."t "".1"4 {l'I'fI
Particulats

Current tax

20T2 2027

49.30 3.30

Adiusttnent in resPect of cutrent tncome tax or Pt tu' y=o"

Total tax charBe

16.64 -258.75

65.94 -255.45

49.30 3.30

1.6.64 -258.75

/<
Ot
ol
\*
6-,$'il

2\
,rlrlr

x%



Reconciliation Of The Total Tax Charge

ThetaxclrargeshowninthestatementofProfitandlossdilfersfromthetaxchargethatwouldapplyilallprolitshadbeenchargedatlndia
corporate tax rate. A reconc,iation between th" tax expense iriJin" u..orr,ting p-rofit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the yeals

enied 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is, as follows: 
(Rs in Lakhs)

For the year endedll]4arch

e..or',.tti.,g P.ofit before tax

Applicable tax rate

ilfil*t"t"*"t of Profit and loss

(Rs inLakhs)
Deferred Tax

Particulars
For the Year ended 31 March

2022 2027

Defened tax asset/ Ilablllry (net,

Ihe movement 350.67 92.39

At the start oi the Year u L
-1.09

a.^A;t I l.l\aropr r.t ,

-^ 

f ^r:^^/ h6h6rrt trahrlrirps -2.27 -0.47

Credit / (charqe) Jor remeasuretrtertt ur urs
-16.64 258.75

a"^A;t / l.h^ropr ,. t,

[At the end of year DTA/ (DTL)
330.58 350.57

The followi table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:
Lakhs)

*EI{ective lnterest Rate
**Elfective lnterest SPread

lncome

ng 1n

Particulat As at
31 March 2021

Statement of
profit and

loss OCI

As at
31 March 2022

component of deferred tax asset/ (lraD[rry,
n^r----^f, l^v -.cdr / /li"lailih/\ in relation to:

DtJf*"*" b"t**" written down value of fixed assets as per books of

accounts and income tax 45.57 45.97 0.40

.1.09 -1.09

Deferred tax on la[
72.36 2.49 12.59

L)elerred, mDlovee octlcrrL D^PEr rDt
-78.07 -t7.71 -95.78

mpact ot EI
-22.25 -4.51 -26.76

nlpact ulEs
4.29 3.92 -0.37

EiS uptrontmg on assrgnr
1.42 7.42

434.21 5.31 439.52

mpal
2.34 -1.59 0.74

50.52 -50.52

Expenses allowable on PaYmel

Total
350.67 -76.64 -3.35 330.68

the balance sheet an tecorded in the ilSgmglg

Particular As at
31 March 2020

Statement of
profit and

loss OCI

As at
31 March 2021

Component ol delerreo tax assc( / \uduurt/,

Deferred tax asset / (lraDurty

-39.09 -6.48 45.57DiIf"r"..o between written down value of {ixed assets as Pe

accounts and income tax
7.92 4.91 -0.47 12.35

Deferred tax on EmPloyee benetlt L'xPense

impact of EIR on loan receivables*
-95.93 L7.85 -78.07

-34.54 12.30
_a) )q

lmpact of EIR on Botto.*E '-
4.29 -4.29

EIS upfronting on asslgntnent transactlff

hnpact due to Share Based Payment

lnrpairment on financial assets

li"* nition o{ lease asset and riSht to use asset

ll-.-.* Tn* Loss to be carried forward

t.42 1.42

252.67 181.54 434.21.

1.37 0.97 2.34

50.52 50.52

92.39 258.75 -0.47 350.67

Total
*EI(ective Interest Rate

**E[fective lnterest SPread ffi o
T

.!

LrnDact due to Snare Daseo rayutcrrt

N;
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LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NoTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALoNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IOR THE YEAR ENDED 3'lst Motch 2022

Paticulus
As rt

31 M.rch 2022

A6 rt
31 Maeh 2021

Ar .t
1 April 2020

8.37 u: 10.49

Jlepaid expenses

E.37 29.74

tn

Pxticul[B

&adclillble!
a) Total outstanding dues of micrc enterprises md small oterpdses

b) Total outstandinS dues oI seditors othel thil micto sterPrises od Emall

enterprises

other DrvibleB

a)Total outstanding dues of micrc mterPrises md small enterpises

b) Total outstanding dues oI qeditols othe' than micro entetprises md small

6lelprises

AB rt
31 M.(h 2022

As .t
31 March 2021

As at
I Apdl 2020

77.67

479.83

724.39

11.59

t81.96

906.05

3.94

222.49

80.85

615.89 7,702.57 307.30

Iotal (B)

Partiaulars
More than 3 Total

LesB ihan 1 Yeil 1-2 Y€d 2-3 Yeas

491.50
491.50

ii-fiidi'iiud Trad" Pay"hl. - .unsid"rtd doub(ul

iiit Drsputed Trade Payahle considered good

(lv) Disputed 
_lrade I'ayable consloereo oouosur I '

Bsed0nmdtothecxtstofinIormationIecciv€dbyrheComPmyft,-,t..,uppuo@6Ent6Pris8DaEloPmstAct,2006(M5MED
e.ii*Jr.U.a tp*tV the auditors, th€ relEvmt particulus u at the yeu-end ue fmished below:

iiEifrStnlro e.t, os at the yea! end (since

lnterest accrued sd due to

Note 15 - Debt 3e(uities

)J
t

At nnro*ised cost

Debentures (Secured)

way ofnypothxaton "l 
idendlied bool ffi;.il"bt* P*, *d fuhr€ of rhe comPmv (to amount of deb€nu€s)

:o

1

)-



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OFTHE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2022

Debt securities

Terms of of non-convertible debentures (NCDs) as at 3L March 2022

lnterest rate oI NCD is at 13.25% as at 31 March 2021

)Terms of repayrnent of commercial as at 31 March 2022

-lnterest rate of Comercial Paper ranges from 11% to 13% as at 31 March 2022

- Face value of commercial paPer is Rs 29 Cjole as at 31 Match 2022

Terms of of commercial as at 31 March 2021

-lnterest rate of ColMercial Paper rmges from 11% to 13% as at 31 March 2021

- Face value of commercial paper is Rs 19.80 Crore as at 31 March 2021

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

Issued at par and redeemable at Par

-luterest rate langes Irom 12% to 14% as at 31 Much 2022 for NCD

as at 31 March 2021

Issued at par and redeemable at

Issued at discount and redeemable at

Orisinal maturitY (In no.of
at discount and redeemable at

-t

.-,,



in lnkhs)

Prticul.rs hth 7na7

As rt
3I Mar.h 2021

As lt
1 April 2020

1,307.24

12,82E.91

250.09

3,a5626

2,35L.25

72,99.86

1,885.46

rzi.u

2,897.44

12,136.34

359.50

;ecued
ferm lom
:'rom Bank'
r'!om othe! thil bank*

Bank Oveldrafts

Securitisation LoN

Unsecued

Ierm loars
From Bank

From othcr thanbank

78,242.57 17,011.60 15,393.28

Borrowirgs in hdia
Borowiiqs oubide lndia

74,242.57 17,0t7.60 15,393.2E

78242.57 12011.60 15,393.28

[iltmt o( t ro to t zs tmes of ouL\tandhs

LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ljOI{ IHE YE4R INDED 31.st ]lnrch2022

abbs' Pre6entand

The company has di*losed se shGnmt of lryphdakd dnenr aMb to resFdive bank/finNial itrttuuons at requned men'al6 and the same de h agremcnt with book! of a6omb

(C) Terru of rePayment of term loans from Finandrl lMtitution 
'! 't 

31 Merch 2022

. lnurest ratc ran8eslromll% to 15% as at31 Milch2022

(D) Terms of rePayment of term loaN from Bank as at 31 M'rch 2022

(Rs in LaH$)

{,fo
o-
d-

"7)

Due within 1 year Duelto2Years Due2to3Year8 More than 3 years

)riginal maturity (In

ro,of days)

f,lo. of
,n6talmetrtg Amount

\,1o. of
nstalments

f,lo, of
inBtalm€nt8 Amount

No. of
inBtelments Amount fotrl

4,206.29
4206.29

6,476.46

,66.730 204 5,1n.59 57
2,746.20

737-1095 54 42 908.30 32.07

Morc thar 1095

12,828.94

Totil

- lnterest ratc rmges from 1l% to 15% as at 31 Much 2021

- lnterestlatc ranScs llom 13% to 15% s at31 Milch 2021

13% to 14.5% as at 31 March2022

9i



loans ftom Bank at 31 March 2021

- lntclest rate range6 from13% to 14.5% asat3l Mdh 2021

Ternrs of of t€rm loans from Bank es at 31

- lntcrest rate mn8e" Irom 13% to 14 5% as at 31 March 2021

(D) T€rms of rePayment of working caPital Over&aft from bank a' at 31 Much 2022

- lntcrestmte is at 14.5% d at 31 March 2022

Duelto2Y€ar6

Terms of rePayment of workint.aPital Overdlaft lrom bank as at 31 March 2021

(E) Terms of repayment of Bortowing under S€cuiti6ation a6 at 31 Mach 2022

-lnrcrest rate ranges lrom12.75% to 14.5% asat31 Milch 2022

T€rms of rePayment of Borrowing under Secuitioation as at 31 M'rch 2021

- lniercst ratc ranS!$ (rom 12 75% to 14.5% as at 31 March 2022

Terms of r€payment of Borrowing under Se'uiti8ation ac at 31 M'rch 2020



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRTVATE LIMITED

NoTES FORMING PART oF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2022

rhnrdinete I)ebt
(Rs in

Particulars
As at

31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

As at
l April 2020

Subordinated Debts 500.00 500.00 500.00

Total 500.00 500.00 500.00

hili+i (Rs ir

Particular

As at
11 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

i*to,l /Ti"r II\ redeemable non-convertible debentures 500.00 500.00

lB) Outside India

(C) Terms of of subordinated debts as at 31 March 2022

Terms of of subordinated debts as at 3L Malch 2021

- Interest rate ranges from 14.5% to ^17.25% as at 31 March 2021

Terms of re ment of subordinated debts as at 31 March 2020

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

Issued at par and redeemable at

- Interest rate ranges lrom 14.5% to77.25% as at 31 March 2022

maturity (In no.of

Issued at par and redeemable at

Issued at par and redeemable at

More than 1825

- Interest rate ranges Irom 14.5% to 17.25% as at 31 March 2020



Irticulue
Ax rt

31 Merch 2022

Aa at

31 Mdrch 2021

As .t
I April 2020

*me liability

)thgs

72 .25 ": 89.e5

31.76

72.25 55.97 121.00
fotal

Discloeurea ae required by Ind AS 115 'Leaees'de Etated below

(B) Lease rentals of Rs 4.38 takh (Previous year - No Amo6t) Pertaining to shott tem leases md low value Nets has bffi chilged to Statement of Pto(it md lss

tn

P&ticulrB
As et

31 Mdch 2022

A! .t
31 Merch 2021

A, .l
1 April 2021

55.97 89.85 89.85

4.93 10.10

48.65 43.98

laldnce at the end oI the Year
72.25 55.97

in hl,Ja)

Plticulds
For the Yeu
ended 2O22

For the Yeu
ended 2n27

72.53 48.65

I dter thm one vear but not later thm file yedrs 12.53

(Rs rn

P*ticulue
As at

31 Merch 2022

As rt
31 March 2021

72.8 39.83

After 12 months
15.74

Pdti.ulils
Ar .t

31 Mfth 2022

Ar at
31 March 2021

Ar at

1 April 2020

Plovisios for emPloyee benelits

Gratuity
Lrave Enc*hment

33.96

14.46

n.82
79.72

18.01

72.46

48.42 47.55 30.4?
Iotrl

Pdtiolds
As at

?1 Mrrch 2022

As .t
11 M.r.h 2fl21

A8 rt
I Anril rnr0

Jtffiyd*
Sthers

124.4
65.16

74.23

65.L6 62.77

189.59 79.39 62.17



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NoTESFoRMINGPARToFTHESTANDALoNEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3ist March2022

Reconciliation of the number of equity shaes outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year'

iii Compulsory Convertible Preference share

a)

i

Lakhs)

b)

i

Terms and rights attached to Shares

Equity shares: The company has only one class of equity shares having a pu value of I 10 per shares' Each shaleholder is eligible for one vote per shue held' ln

the event of liquidation, the equiry shareholders are eligible ," ,.""i" ,i" ."-aining assets of the company ajter distribution of all preferential amomts' in

proportion to their shareholding'

prefernce srrares: The company has a two crass of preference shares. rn the event of liquidation, the prelerence shareholders are eligible to receive the

outstanding amount including 
jividend alter distributi"n .r ,rr 

"tr.", 
pr"r"rential amounts but belore equity shareholders' in proportion to their shareholding'

,/\
/*/tri
,o,l.

of Promoters

N

Rs in

Note 21 -
Amt 31 March 2022 F" at gt Much z02t I--s atl April 2020

Particulars

Authorised shares

Equity Shares of the par value of Rs 1 0 each

Preference Shares of the par value of Rs 10 each

I

llssued, subscribed & fully paid-up shues

lEquity shares of lls.10 each

I P..ference shares of Rs.10 each

lCon prl"o.y Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10

leach

' 

-

Number Rs.
Number Rs. Number Rs.

22,00,000

54,00,000

220.00

540.00

22,00,000

54,00,000

220.00

540.00

22,00,000

54,00,000

220.00

ilO.00

2r,48,920

2,94,900

47,13,781

2^t4.89

29.49

47L.38

21,48,920

2,94,900

47,13,781

21.4.89

29.49

471.3E

21,48,920

2,94,900

47,13,781,

2"14.89

29.49

477.38

71,57,50\ 7r5.76 T1,57,607 Tts.76 T1,57,60r T15.76

Equity Shares

As at 1 APril 2020

Particulars
Number Rs.

Rs.

2J4.89

Number Rs.

21.,48,920 214.89 21.,48,920 274.89

off;;e "t 
th"t*8"* g of the Year

Add: Shares issued 4q4"CggJ:g-
27,48,920

21,48,970 2L4.89 27,48,920 2'74.89 2LA8,920 274.89

Preference shues ln

As at 1 April 2020

Particulrs

Outstanding at the betirnint ot the year

Add: Shares issued during the Year

Number Rs.
Number Rs. Number Rs.

2,94,900 29.49 2,94,900 2e:e 2,94,900 29.49

2.94.900 29.49 2,94,900 29.89 2,94,900 29.49

t M"r"h ZOzt As at 1 APril 2020

Particulars Number Rs. Number Rs.

47,13,787 47138 47,13,781 471.38

dlrctr^ai^fot ttte begiming of the year

Add: Shares issued during the Year

47,13,781

47,13,781. 477.38 47,73,787 471.38 47,13,781 471.38

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shues in the company

As at 31 Milch 2022il"*f "nn.."7Name 
of shueholder

L"^"1"p Ftr-*,^l T".lE9l9g,"" !I'u3j: LhI"d

As at 31 March 2022
q of shares/ Name of shaleholder

;,ff
l{9



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NoTESFoRMINGPARToFTHESTANDALoNEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(Continued)
.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2022

Note 22 - Other equitY

Nature and purPose of the reserve

a) Securities premium

Securities premium reserye is used to record the premium on issue of shares' The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes

such as iss-uance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013'

b) Special Reserve under section45 IC of RBI Act,1934

special reserve is created as per the requirement of RBI at the r ale of20% of the Profit after tax for the year' Transfer to special reseroe

in previous year is as per the audited finmcial statements of the Previous year as per Indian GAAP'

c) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the surplus in Prolit and Loss Account and appropriations'

The Company recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset) as part of

retained earnings with separate disclosure, which comprises of:

actuarial Sains and losses;

return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defhed benefit liability (asset) ; and

any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

liabilitY (asset).

d) Other comprehensive income

On debt investments

tn

Particulars
As at 31

Much 2022

As at

31 Much 2021

As at
1 April 2020

17,464.22 71,464.22 Ll,464.22

n-!-:--J ^^-.-:-^-
(el4.06) (1,070.s1 (331.06

.:=::r-6;=^^,r-* coarinn 4( IC of RBI Act. 1934 45.48 7.98 7.98

61f,--..o*pt"h"nsiveincomeond"b!t"g.1!f : 3.09

10,598.73 10101.59 17,L41.14

Add- Reccived during the Year

(1,070.s1)

787.49

6.45

(37.s0)

Add: Profit for the Year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

: Transfer to Special Reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act' 1934

Special Reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act,1934

Opening balance

Add: Transfer from Profit for the

Other comprehensive income on debt securities

Company recognises changes in the fair value of debt instruments held with a dual business objective of collect

sell in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated in the FVOCI debt investments'-"llli:.TijlTl11{

Xffiffi1ffir".#;;;;;;;;;il;.h. i.it i,,ru,rnu,,t is sold. Any impairment loss on such instruments is

immediately to the Statement of Profit and Loss'



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31stMARCH2022

. Ar p". .ff".t"* interest rate (EIR), refer note no' 3'L (ii)

Note 25 - Other Income

Lakhs)

Lakhs)

(Rs inLakhs)

Lakhs)

+. ati 111

Particulars
Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended

3l March 2021

5,568.78

185.50

4,729.67

1.02.50

(a) Interest Income on Financial assets measuted at amortised Cost*

Interest on loans

Interest on deposits f.o* bu.kt u.d ofu
5,754.28 4,232.27

fotal

?4 Epcc end ission income
inLakhs

Particulars
Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

287.77

19.79

23.31.

1.41,.70

6.39

20.40

Service and administration charges

Foreclosure income

Distribution income
330.87 768.49

Total

f\+Lor (.!nprefins f Rs ir

Particulars
Year ending 31

March2022
Year ended 31

March 2021

48.55

1.85

1,42.68

0.10
Service fees

Other miscellaneous income

50.40 142.78
Total

Particulars
Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 202L

73.09
Other income (Profit on Sale of Intangible Asset)

Total
73.09

Nnla ?7 - Financp cost Rs in

Particulars
Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

Financial Liablities measured at amortised Cost:

a) on debt Securities

b) on borrowing other than debt securities

c) on lease liabilitY

ld) on Other Fi"u^." t]osts

886.34

2,121,.25

4.93

252.65

38.86

2,500.70

10.10

215.82.

3,255.L7 2,765.55
I

,(J

ioFoj



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NoTESFoRMINGPARToFTHESTANDALoNEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37sIMARCH2022

If,I* **rio.ed figures are excluding GST

Lnkhs)

Lakhs)tn(Rs

(^,**B

Rsin
rI^r- tQ - I--rirmeflt O[ flflalrlrdl .

Particulars

io"6"*iuf-o" fi""*iuf i"rt ,'lrt""E '*isured 
at amortised cost:

I

lProvision for expected credit loss

lFinancials assets written off

Itotul

Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

(17.0e)

1,030.38

800.05

829.24

\,v19 7,629.29

(Rs inLakhq
LI^1^ to - E-tlowep henetlt expenscs

Particulars

Employees Emoluments

Contribution to Provident

GratuitY benefit exPenses

Leave Encashment
Welfare ExPense

ESOP ComPensation

Total

and other Funds

Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

575.30

36.21.

14.85

6.93

50.01

2.24

383.67

10.80

11.62

9.77

19.00

20.89

685.55 455.76

Note 30 - Other exPenses

Particulars

Rent, Taxes & EnergY Cost

llegal and Professional Charges*

I Sof ,r"ur. usage, maintenance

lcsr lrc reversal

lArditor', fees and exPenses*

lRecouerv Costst'
lTravelling & Conveyance Expenses

lortro.r..ir,g exPenses

lMiscellaneous ExPenses

otal

Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

81.81

75.68

50.00

137.73

3.50

272.13

27.04

195.2\

35.49

ss6sI
55.36 I

36.00 
I

92.97 
|

3.25

1,67.56

10.47

114.30

51,.17

888se I sse.zs

(Rs in Lakhs
-breaKuP or auurturs rt"t*^"^*'^"" 

t

Particulars I

lStatutory Audit
I

lTax Audit Fee
I

lLimited review fees

Year ending 31

March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

2.75

0.75

2.50

0.75

3.50 3.25



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OFTHE STANDALONE FINANCL{I STATEMENTS (Continued)
.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

3L. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated in accordance with Ind AS 33'Earnings per share' by dividing the profit for the
year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares
into equity shares of the Company.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year ended 31. March
2022 2021

(A) Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs in Lakhs) 187.49 -740.79

(B) Weighted average number of equity shares for basic eamings
per share 21,48,920 21,,48,920

Effect of dilution:
Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of Rs.10 each 47,13,781. 47,13,78'1.

(C) Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted
earnings per share 69,62,701 68,62,70'L

Earning per share (basic) (I) (A/B) 8.73 (34.47)
Earning per share (diluted) 0) (A/C). 2.73 (34.47)
*As the Cornpany has incurred loss during the year, dilutive effect on weighted average number of shares would have an
antidilutive impact and hence, not considered.

32 Segment Information

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, since the nature of the loans are
exposed to similar risk and return profiles hence they are collectively operating under a single segment.
The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

33 Transfer of financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company has
continuing involvement

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company
continues to have continuing involvement. _ -..

zs4.
/*/ ro

(L
,4-
p)(ffi



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1st MARCH 2022

34. Revenue from contracts with customers (Rs in Lakhs)

Particular
For the year ended 31 March

202j2 2021

Iype of services

Service and administration charges 287.77 1,41.70

Foreclosure charges 19.79 6.39

Distribution income 23.31 20.40

Service fee 48.55 742.68

Total 379.42 317.77

Geosraphical rnarkets

India 379.42 317.77

Outside India

Timing of revenue recoqnition

Services translerred at a point in time 379.42 311.\7

Services transferred over time

Contract balances

Fees, commission and other receivables 67.05 5.81

- lmpairment allowance recognised on contract balmces is Nil (Itevious year: Nit)

35. Employee benefit plans

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The gratuity plan is govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972. Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has completed five
years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service, managerial

grade and salary at retirement age.

(Rs LaWs)

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for
gratuity occurs upon completion of five years oI service. Details of the unfunded post retirement benefit plans for its employees are

2 given below which is as certified by the actuary.

Movement in 1n

Particular
For the Year

Ending Mar 22

for the Year
Ending Mar 21

Present value of obliqation as at the beginning of the period 27.82 18.01

Acquisition adiustment

Iransfer ln/(out) -0.47

Interest Expense 7.78 1.15

Past service cost

Current service cost 73.07 10.95

Curtailment Cost / (Credit)

Settlement Cost / (Credit) "13.07

Benefits paid

Remeasurenents on obligation - (Gain) / Loss -8.72 -1.81

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 33.96 27.82

#



I particular

lNet asset / (liability) rec

inI
For the Year

Ending Mar 22
For the Year

Ending Mar 21

1."r-.

IBenefits directlv oairt h,

-27.82 -18.01

rxpclse recomlsed at 8.72 1.81

..,-..",,t., ano.,i". urrd ,
Impact of Transfer (In\ / o,,r

-14.85 17.62

.33.96 -27.82

particulat

lService Cost

lAcquisition (Gain) / I

(Rs in Lakhs
For the Year

Ending Mar 22
For the Year

Ending Mar 21

73.07 10.95

lPast service cost

Net interest ( Income),/ E

7.78 1.15

Settlement(Gain)/f..
TransIerIn,/ lOrrr\

-0.47

14.85 17.62

r particular

-

Remeasurement for the year - obligatlor., 1Cuffi
R"^"orrr"-"r., for ,h"

(Rs in Lakhsl
For the Year

Ending Mar 22
For the Year

Ending Mar 2L

-1.81

-8.72 -1.81

-8.72 -1.81

-10.53 -1.81

particular 

-

JP."t"n, rulru of oblig

,.-.. '",-. -,.,
rurPtus / ,r"r,"r,,
Current liabilitv

(Rs in Lakhs)
As at 31 March 22 As at 31 tvt"rcE Zi-

33.96 27.82

-33.96 -27.82

Non-currenf liahilirU 3.04 0.06

Amount nol rec.-.i.,.,r ,1
30.92 27.76

-33.96 -27.82

IALM(2012-14) ult IALM(2012-14) ult

Rate of increase in com

rate oI retum on
Erp""t"d uu".og" ."^oir.,ir.,g .ryo.ki.,g liu", of uii]liIliil

calculatcd term oI the riability using probabilities of deatrr, withdrawal and retirement

Particular As at 31 March

20u 2021

0.068 0.064

0.05 0.05

6.41, * 6.39 *

58 years 58 years

?n

il -40
'15%

75%

41 -50
75% L5%

750/" 75%

75% 15%

* (r'')
3ru-6-ra)



8 Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions

sensitivity analysis i^dicates the influence of a reasonable change in cettain significant assumptions on the outcome of the present
;:*'.* "','ll}."t:YfH:iif :,* 

;J;;;il, *" ,.*,,"t,v oI reportid u.o,,.,o. s",,,iuvity anarysis is done by varyins one
a) Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point

b) Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point

c) Impact of cha.ge in withdrawal rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point

9 Projected plan cash flow

The following benefits payments' for each of the next five years and the aggregate five years thereafter, are expected to be paid

dcmo graphic and ri.u".ffi

Othet long term employee benefits
The liability for compensated absences as at
Rs 19.97 lakhs

the year ended 3r' March 2022 is Rs 14.46 Lakhs and as at year ended 3, March 2021 is

Discount rate

5.80%

7.80%

(Rs in I

fl/03n022
hesent value of obligation (in Rs.)

35.83

32.26

Salary increment rate

-

4.00%

6.00%

3L /03 /2022
Present value of oblitation (in Rs.)

32.52

35.50

Withdrawal rate

-

74.00y.

1.6.007"

(Rs in I olh"

3t /0s /2022
hesentvalue of obligation (inRs.)

33.79

34.77

Year Ending March 31

-

2023

-

2024

2025

2026

2027

-

2028 -2032

(Rs in I okh"\

Expected Benefit payment rounded to
nearest thousand ( in Rs.)

3.04

3.93

4

5.43

6.89

5g.r?

particular #
76.89

Service Cost

Net Interest C,

Expected Expense ior 2.2't

19.10

ffi
1( pur

wt

tn



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NorES FORMING PART oF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

35. Contingent liabilities and commitments

(Rs inLakhs)

37. Changes in liabilities arisingfrom financing activities

(a) Changes in capital and asset structure arising from financing activities

The Company does not have any financing activities which affect the capital and asset structure of the Company without the
use of cash and cash equivalents.

(b) Changes in liability arising from financing activities

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

Sr Particular As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

As at
01 April 2020

(A) Contingent Iiabilities

(i)

Credit enhancements provided by the Company
towards securitisation (including cash collateral and
loan assets retained as Minimum Retention
Requirement (MRR)) 1,,445.77 538.47 207.33

ll
Financial guarantee on Agreement for ,,First Loss
Default Guarantee" 420.76 202.52 t75.45

(B) Commitments

Loan commitments for sanctioned but not disbursed
amount -1,03.1,2

0.05 1,0.62

(i) Ihcrc is no pcndin8 litigations with Incomc Tax and othet revenue authorities.

I

Thc Compmy has rcviewed all its pcnding litigations and proccedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and
discloscd the contingent liabilities where applicablc, in its linancial statements. The amount of provisions / contlngent liabilities is based on
managcmcnt's cstimate, and no signilicmt liability is expected to arisc out of the same.

Particular Asat 1

April2021 Cash Flow Other As at 31 March 2022

Debt securities 2,724.28 1,2,479.39 247.43 8,424.98
Borrowing (other than Debt Securities) 17,011.60 77,202.74 1.40.06 78,242.57
Subordinated debts 500.00 500.00
Total 20,235.88 29,622.73 387.48 27,757.55

Particular As at
1 April 2020

Cash Flow Other
As at

31 March 2021
Debt securities 2,771,.14 46.87 2,724.28
Borrowing (other than Debt Securities) 1,5,393.28 13,71.9.38 1,7,011,.60
Subordinated debts 500.00 500.00
Total 15,893.28 t6A9o.s2 46.87 20,235.88



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[ffi;?ffi ]fJsT :ilHfllyALoNE FTNANCTAL srArEMENrs (continued)

38. Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24

I-lou. Cr.dit pri*EItf,J
K 

"y 
Moru g" 

^u.t I,ur" o..JIKMp;

Mr. Vikas Kumar

Sr Name of the related party Nature of
relationship

Nature of
Transaction

(Rs in Lakhs)
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Transaction
value

439.00

uutstanding
amounts
carried in
Balance Sheet

Iransaction
value

Outstanding
amounts
carried in
Balance Sheet

1

Loantap Financial Technologies
Private Ltd Holding 3ale of Asset

1.09.1,2

2
nnotogles

Private Ltd Holding
Reimbursement of
Expense 502.13 69.25 285.86

3

Loantap Financial T""hnJJ6".
Private Ltd Holding

Loan trom
Holding Co.

-234.46 125.M
4

Loantap Financial T".h.,ologi""
Private Ltd Holding

lnterest Paid on
Loan )r, 'r.7Loantap Financial T"ch.,ologi".

Private Ltd Holding
Loan to Holding
Co. '1,589.29

1,388.61

6

Loantap Financial Technologies
Private Ltd Holding

Interest received
on Loan 22.54

Loantap Financial Technologies
Private Ltd Holding

Software related
iervice from
Holding Co. 50.00 35.00 6.63

8

9

Loantap Financial Technologies
Private Ltd

-

Satyam Kumar

Holding

Amount received
under ESOP
recharge

arrangements ) 'rt
1.5.42 38.84

Key Management
Personnel Salarv 84.22 5-1.25

10 Vikas Kumar
Key Management
Personnel rlerv 83.95 59.94

Notes

Transactionvalueandoutstandin8b"lu..uofLo"ntoHJIilCompanyinclude,u"tu
receivable from Loantap Financial Technologies pvt Ltd
Provisionsforgratuity,conpensateda|1e1c1sandotherlongtermservicebenefitsaremua"r*
nanagemmt personnel are not specifically identified and heriee are not included above.

Balance oI Interest r"""ir"d offi

-

Bulu... oI I^t"r"rt puidffi

tred

?nls
f"
\*



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

IrTHJ?Itr|fr:#HilHfl 
ilDALoNEFTNANCTALSTATEMENTs(conrinued)

39. Capital

The Company actively manaSes its capital base to cover risks inherent to its business and meet the capitar adequacyrequirement of RBI' The adeq-uacy or ti" -o.r,puny's 
capital i, *o,itor"a ,ri'g, urr,or;-o,n"l-rr,.urr.es, the regulations issued

by RBI.

(i) Capital management

The Cornpany's objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business stuategy taking into account the
regulatory' economic and commerciut t"uiio"*",,r The companr 

"i.", ,i maintain a strong capital base to support the risksffittJ,o#ffffi if"::"** 
strategi;' rhe Companv;;#";;;,, to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated

The Cornpany's assessm,entof capital requirement is aligned to its planned growth which forms part of an arurual operatinglflil,11*1i'.:r"Jii:tff"1T*?1}:; u ro.,s,",ig"",."*si.'ir,*e 
srowthprans are arigned to assessmentor,i,k, -

The Company monitors its capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) on regurar basis

Particulars

lTier II caoital

r\rsN wtrlBflteo ass

Tier I CRAR

I

As at 31st March
(Rs in

As at 1 April20202022 2027
10,483.25 70.314.R7 71,587.15

484.36 521.59 625.95
10,967.61, 70,836.47 72,274.10

31.,984.09 26,900.17 27,334.34

32.78% 38.35% 42.39y,
7.51% 1..94% 2.29%

34.29% 40.29,/. 44.68%

40. Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment/disclosure in these financial statements.

41. Fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderry transaction in theprincipal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price),regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
"rti*at"i ffi ".,"rrution 

technique.

ll"i:til: "ow 
how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuarion

This note describes the fair value measurement of both financial and non-financial instruments.

W



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NorES FORMING ,ART oF THE sTANDAtoNE FINAN.IAL 
'TATEMENT' 

(continued)FoR THE yEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

Valuation framework

;ff::ffi::l$niffi?1jil;ffi:iff:::ent team which assesses the fair varues of assets quarifyins for fair varuation.
- Benchmarking prices against observable market prices or other independent sources;- Developrnent and validation of fair valuation rr,oa.rc "ri;;";"ll.gic, inputs, outputs and adjustonents.- Use of fair values as determined by the derivative counter f,ardes.

These valuation models are subject to a Process of due diligence and validation before they become operational and arecontinuously calibrated' These models aie subject to ,pp-lr"r, uy ;;t"r, functions including risk, treasury and finance
ll}r,nHn';.|:1",1'.:l;:,Xilfr::'" ror establishins p.o"ua',r.r, sovemins varuation aid ensurins rair values are in

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
specific valuation techniques used to varue financiar instruments include:
Based on discounted cashllow metlnd for loans at amortiseil cost

The Company has computed fair value of the loans and advances measured at amortised cost considering its business model.These have been fair valued using the average of the interest rate of loan disbursed in the last six months of the year which isan unobservable input and therefore these hls been considered to befair valued using level 3 inputs.

Based on discounted casrtfrow method for bortowings at amortiseil cost

under this method' the incremental impact on the discounted casMows of borrowings at amortized cost is estimated based onchanges in borrowing rate on latest debi obtained by the Company.

Bnsed on discounted cnsrtflow method for irutestments measured at FV^CI -

Iffi"".irffi,oj"Tffi:'lr"Jt 
designated under FVoCI have been determined under level 1 using quoted market prices of the

The cornpany has deterrnined that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, shortterm loans' floating rate loans, investments designated under FVoCI, trade payables, short term debts securities, borrowings,

::S"""HitfftJt1j",:.t:rrent 
liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value and hence their carying values
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LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Irfll:J?ffi ITXRHilH;1;)rALoNEFrNANcrALsrArEMENrs(conrinued)

42. Fair value hierarchy
The Company determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy:

ill;.;ilT::il;;:":"::::T: il::#ancrarrnstruments 
with quored prices ror identicar inshuments in acrive markets that the

:;::*ffi, 
or sim,ar ii"t,u*".t in inactive markets "#ffHi,,lJ;:s:JJT;fi'ffH::i:1il:"T;:l;#ili1r.j,:",*;;;;

liHi;,1;;X:""#1il;1::.Xith signiricant unobservable inputs: financiar ins*umenrs varued usingvaluation techniques where one or more

Quantitative disclosures of fafu value measurement hierarchy for financiar instruments measured at fair varue as at 31 March 2022
Lakhs)

ve disclosures of fair value measurement
t 31 March 2021

uantitative disclosures of fair value measurement for financial instruments measured at fair value as at 1 A 2020

Fair value of financiars inshuments measured at amortised cost as at 3L March 2022

(Rs in Lnkhs)

Fair value ^."r*u-.rrf

inves tments designut"J 
""ET%Ei

Fair value measurement

Date of valuation_rurner rrrvestments designated under F\rOCi

Fair value ^u"r*.-ilf

Date of valuation_urner rnvestments designated under FVOCI

Fair value -"""*"-"rt

Cash and.urh 
"qriurlilE

Bank balance other than cash and cash

er financial assets

in8s (other than debt securities)

Other financial liabilities



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[ffiJ?#]frt#T ;ffi:fltyAloNE FTNANCTAL srArEMENrs (Conrinued)

ade,,
,ftr,

Fafu value of financials instruments measured at amortised cost as at 31 March 2021

Particulars

Fair
- (Rs in Lakhs)

value measurement using

Carrying Value

Quoted prices
in active
markets (Level
1)

Significant
observable
inputs (Level
2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3) Total

h and ca"h

Bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents

3,725.26

503.90

3,725.26

503.90

3,725.26

503.90
321,.23

Loans

I"*"tr"""tr-
321,.23 321..2326,246,89

27.O30 47 27,030.43

tancral assets
938.06

938.06 938.06
Fi.rancial liubilit[r-
Trade pavables

1,"102.61,
1.,1,02.5L 1.,1.02.61.

Debt Securities
2,724.28

2,709.22 2,709.22Durrowlllgs (other than debt I

-

irhordinrr-,,,I-Lr. 
securities) -17,01,L.50

17,084.59 17,084.59

Other financial liabilities
500.00

509.15 509.15
55.97

55.97 55.97

Fair value of financials inskuments measured at amortised cost as at r. April 2020

Particulars

I

Fair
'ralue measutenrent using

(Rs in Lakks)

Carrying Value

Quoted prices
in active
markets (Level
1)

Significant
observable
inputs (Level
2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3) Total

Cash and .urh 
"quiu;I";E

-

:ouivalents
457.12 457.12

457.12

ade vahlec
250,09 250.09

250.09
117.27

717.27 117.27

Investments
25,960.78

26,735.78 26,735.78

Other financial assets
780.46

780.46 780.46

Financial liabilities

Other pavables

Debt Securities

226.43
226.43 226.43

80.85
80.85 80.85

(uLrrcr Lnan cleDt secunttes)

-

Stthordirratoi.l-Lr.
L5,393.28

1,5,1,82.42 15,182.42

Othpr f
500.00

51,5.77 515.77
121.00

121.00 121.00



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

it"ffi J?ix,)rxH,?il1H1il*LoNEFrNANcrALsrArEMENrs(continued)

43. Risk management objectives ud policies

The Conrpary,s activities expose it

',',1:'ij:::t:'J,il{:ffi*}1ffi;i*,"',f,'";;x*k*tHmr.x}irr*y*irlg,rr.,",ffi,j*ji##,,*.,ffi'ff:t#ffi,ffi_"f*,ffil"(a) Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Co

i fl,l,'*; r:*i*1*:[.liif$:::fr"f#:"J'::,ol',i:i':ff;" ,o*ar maturity pror,e on contractua, as we, c residuar basis;
' contt.g"..v, i;;;;;*iffi:1il:,*.".,x,J,f*t." *d eroure risor in neg"tr'i; *iil.'r"i*i"ii* 

" 'oo"*. "*i*'ulrl**s "s 
we, G to improve the covsmts;

nrilkei md as a pdt oI its ALM str6

The table below sunuarises the

Particulds

Debt

the undiscounted conbactual cashflow of the
As at 3lMarch 2022 --f---

's fimcial liabilitiesi
in lakhs)

wrthin
12 months

&ter
12 months fotal 12 months

iller
[2 months

288.82

Iotal 12 months
After
12 months Iotal

Bouowings (othet than debt
8,937.97 1,532.67 70,470.59

19,682.57

2,520.51

1.5,073.51 4,609.01

2.809.33

13,0L6.62 6094.03Srbordinut"d dGE 19, 10,037.24 6,760.16 16,797.40Irade payables
491.50

629.09 74.55 629.09 64.22Itlr"r navabl"i- 491.50 196.55 195.55
703.u 767.86

124.39
1.24.39 906.06

226.43
226.43

12.25
12.25 55.97

906.06 80.85
80.86

Tlu table below shows
55.97 121.00

121.00
value oI assets md liabilities

As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Bank balance other thm cash md

Borrowings (other thm debt

73,9-19.1-t

Otl*r financial liabilitil

Non-financial liabilities

otlrur non-Ii.*.i^fiilIiiiG



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

itffiJ?I#L:ffi :ffiHiil*LoNE FTNANCTAL srArEMENrs (continued)

(b) Market risk

yilTt::[::',ilii.fi:1il1T"1flIffT*"#:::"":ffi'*JIx]ff:fi:1j:j1iff".""ffis;H:LT":ffir:Hi"##il::.H:d6in,eres,ra,eriskmdroreigncmory

(i) Interest rate risk

borrowings nude by the Company.

On investment book

Sensiti as at 31 March 2022

(Rs ih lakhs)
Puticuluc

-

nvestnent at FVOCI *

sktrent in mits oI Mo""y u-lu *a'iliJIIllIEiG

Carrying value Fak value

104.18 104.18.hu.g" i^pu.t n. it" i.*GiflIlIol
an as at 31 March 2021

lrlvestment at FVOCI Carrying value Frir value

Sensitiv

On assets and liabilities

anal asatl 2020

Investnrent at FV Carrying value Fair value

as at 31. March 2022

particulue

-

Debt secu.ities

-

Borrowi,gs (other tltan deUt,
Subordinated debs

Carrying value Fail value Sensitivity to fair vJif
%o insease 1 o/o deqease

29,996.27 30,89'1.74 -267.U 261.60
8,424.98 8,293.45 42;13 42.62

1,8,242.57 18,315.45 -77.34 78.-11,
500.00 500.04 -6.96 7.72

Sensitiv as at 31 March 2021

particulil6

-

Loans

Debt secuities

Suoorornated debts

Carrying value Fair value Sensitivity to fair value
1 %o increase o/o deqease

26,246.89 27,030.43 -234.36 228.91
2,724.28 2,709.22 -6.68 5.76

77,0'1L.60 17,0Us9 -104.83 106.17
500.00 509.15 -10.80 11.11

ana asatlA 2020

thPaticulars

Loaro

E"bt .**ttt""

Carryint v.lue Fair value Sensitivity to fait value
lo/o i 9/o decreaae

25,960.78 26,735.78 -23^1.87 226.41
6orrorvinqs {other th^n,-.lFht ".",,"i,i--\
Ju,ur uuld(eo oeDts 15,393.28 1,5,182.42 -140.12 1,42.13

500.00 51,s.77 -14.44 14.97



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

ilJi;J?Xlfrr#,?ilHi#r^LoNE FTNANCTAL srArEMENrs (conrinued)

(c) cledit risk

Credit dsk a88e6sment and Management

The company assess and mmges credit risk on lom md advmces.by a robut control framework by the risk md collection departmmt. Thisis acheived by continuously aliBrhg credit md::i[:*:tr111""',1:.nmlrr'ffitxn*:i#ri]#1"i,,1*"",*J;;il;;#;i.lmdderinqumciesiy".Li,"ia*aaremmsemmtteamcompisinf 
orrisk,mrytics,

Staging of Loans

*tli"tHi,:::ili'#i:l:?*:lH:t1fiffi?:.Ti:frTiff:i::,;1il::jil?yilxffrr;[r,ii#rlTltrffir.:T:rtrrr*?rr1,:ffi"y.*,o","c.mprcd

conUactual payments.

1"t-5 lld f 1*' te cmpmy assesse whether there is a signilicmt increase in credjr risk at the repor

Qumtitative based statint criteria ue as Iollows: _

-Stagel-DpD=<lnronth
- Stage 2 - DPD > 1 month = < 3 months
-Stage3-DpD> 3months

ECL Computation:

The Compmy has calculated ECL

Determination of pD is covered above Ior each stages of EEi. 
-'- '-

of conmitted f acilities.

the tinre value oI nroney,

Durin8 the yeu under review' desPite the persistently challenging mcrmonom.ic svironment id CoVrD-lg pmdemic, the compmy hc improved its busirs, with AUM growing at 17% yoy asCoVID-19 
^as 

reduced globallv as t^e number of new c&iJ-is ;""h*" a*r-"a rld;;tff,i" 
"ou***, 

o, *ar" r,., 
"r", 

*iila."wn most of the CovrD-lg related restrictioro

Poiition to caPitalise on Srowth oPPort'nitit" atcol'aitgty, a;;p;;i r*"g.mmt is nlt expmting my significmt impact on its liquidity or profitability.
3Jfffiff"i:il:Jl::1*'-':."iHi,,*:x;'*::;;Ii:,:'Jili?i':il:;Ilff:+_-Jil.rf::n:::,;:Hi*.1;:H:fl;r;;J,"n*"*e*ain 

Accordins,y,he

(d) Operational risk



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE I
FOR rHE yE1lR ENDED jrrr,\4{Rcil;yALoNE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (continued)

tl4. Employee etock option plan

The Holdrng Cornpany Ins Emolovee

s;rfr:iiil"trlriidiitr"ffi],n:"J*"$lH#i.;?:fu#,tdrrT,ff;#;*i;]i,:ffiir#,f;nT;.-tr#J;rr:,r.,ffi:r

{5 rschedule to the Balance shect of Non Brnking Finencial company es required in terru of pa.grrph 1g of thc Mr'ter Dir€ctione iesucd by thc Rcccre Benk of

a(crued thereon ua, a"ir",a ,^' 
vq.^,rE .nancral comPany

hr t,.e Iorm of Partly r""*". d"b.@
value of security

(Rs inbkhs)

oftoan"a@

(a) Loa'u *hure a-eG hiie-TGi

) Units of Drutual furds

Urits o( rrlutual Iulds

Sr. No

As at March-tldii
Amount

Outstatrdinc
Amount Amount

Outrtandine
Amount
ovcrdue

5 616)
83(

\EtLollulerctall,aDer 

--

1R)A)
16,885.56

12s
2.808.68

1.894.21t



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRTVATE LIMITED

Sr. No

6

[ffi j?ffi 
ffj;Tffixr.flty*oNEFrNANcrAlsrArEMENrs(continued)

Investor group-wise (lasoification of all investments (curent and long term) in 6hare6and 6ecuritie6 (both quoted rnd unquoted): -"- 's'i6 !!rr

l'arti.ular6
Borrower group-wise claAsification of asset6 financed aB in (3) and (4) above :

Market value/breekup or fair
valu€ or NAV

8

Other
rticulars
Gross Non-Perfon
Related Darties

Other than related
Net Non-Perform

Aseets

(Rs in lakhs)
As at March 31,

2027
As et Merch 31,

2021
Amount lRB.l Amount (RE.)

753.33 1.,341.37

)ther tllan re
Assets acqu ln debt 527.33 938.96

/^ay7-
/(<
o
}I PU

Ydt



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[ffi J?#xj#;ili:flil*LoNEFrNANcrALsrArEMENrs(conrinued)

45. First-time adoption of Ind AS
Thcsc are thc CoDrpuy,s first finmcial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The company has prepued its lnd AS compliart firnrrcial statementsJor yeil ended on 31 Much 201?, the compuative poiod ended on 31 Much 2021 md m
opcning Ind AS Balilcc sheet as at I Ap"r iozo 1trt" a"i" 

"i o**" 1, "" 
o"".riuua *-*,u 

"',ri^ui'or ,ig^,I*u., "*.rit g il.; ilrLis note exprairo the principar:l['.1".",X"11f H.T ;,'il'#rT*""'* il*;';; EiiI ro*.*, "o;;;, ;fiffi1 Burm.. shet a" at r a'prir zozo ma *re rir*nciar sratements 6
For pcriods cnded up to thc ye1.:r-rd.ed 31jr4ach2021, the compmy had prepaed its firuncial statements in accordme with the accomting standuds notified
udcr scction ,,33 

of .he Contpmies Act 2013, read togeth", *t*!*-"gr"oh , rr ,r," cr-p.^* a..'.*ts) Rures, 2014 (trrevious GAAp).
(A) Mandatory exceptione and optional exemptions availed

:;:?:J.T;:'*","1fi::1t5?l##,#-o''o,y u'""o"o* md optional exemptioro applied in the trruition rrom previo* cAAp to rrxd AS, which woe

Mandatory exccptioro

[[ffff,::"* "doPted 
all relevant mudatory exceptioro set out in Ind AS 101 which ue as below:

Ind AS 101 prcscribcs that m cntity's estimates in accordance with Ind-AS at thc date oI traroition to Ind AS shail becoruistent with estimatm made for the ,*e date
inaccordancc with previou GAAP (art"t 

"di"r;;;;;;;", ui.v aiffu."r.u,.;.i.;;]oi;"ri',r,e"" 
there i" oulective evidence that those estimates were in

The company's Ind AS cstimates as at the trffiition date are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previou GAAp.
(ii) Dcrccognition oI fimcial asscts md fimcial liabilities
As sct out in Ind AS 101, thc Comr
traroition to tJ.Ai. 

'-" *'' -'-'pmy has applicd the derecoBnition requirements of Ind AS 109 prospectivcly for traroactioro occuring on or after the date of

(iii) Classification and measuemcnt of fimncial assets

lli^lt^"' 
rcquires an cntity to assess clmsification and measuement of fimnciar assets on the basis of the lacts md circumtmces that exist at the date of trmition

(iv) Lnpaimrcnt of finmcial assets

As sct out in lnd AS 101., m entirvh;;;; ;;;",;il:;*:ffi[l,"tJll :iffi'ffli,fiTffiTil" " *o * 10e retrospectiverv iI it does not enrai] my mdue cost or errort. rhe compmy

(B) Reconciliations between Ind AS and previous GAAp ue given below

l|oXff ::il"$ffnoentity 
to reconcile equity' total comPreheroive income md cash flows Ior previou periods. The following table represmt the reconci.liatiore

Rcconciliation of cquity as at date of hmition 1 April 2020 md as at 31 March 2021

Prticulars

ASSEIS

Notes to
firot time
adoption Previous GAAP Adiustment tnd AS Previous GAAP Adjushnent lnd AS

3,725.263,725.26
457.12 457.72Bank balmcc othcr thm

rash ed cash cquivalcnts
503.90 503.90 250.09 250.09Tradc rcccivablcs
321,.23

Loans
1,,789.04

327.23 777.27 717.27
Othcr Iinancial asscts

26,246.89 26,377.40 '25,960.78
943.53 -5.47 938.06 780.46Total financial assets 30,551.78 780.46

31,735.34 27,982.35 27,555.73
Non-financial Assets

Culrcnt tax asscts (Nct)
D"f....d to, u*u"frIf 24.O7 6.32 6.32
Propu.ty, planimi'
:quipmcnt 29.63

350.67 77.24 75.1,4 92.39

46.99 76.62 32.67 84.58 117.:25
422.42 478.93 478.93

29.74 70.49 "10.49

693.94 903.5r 545.65 705.39TOTAL ASSETS 31,245.72 32,638.85 28,528.00
2E,271.77

I



1r lTotrl outrtmdinldiii

11,,741.1.4

Reconciliation

*"Effcctivc IntcrLsr Sprcad

asatl 2020 ang as at 31 Milch 2021
tn

Particular

I Eq.ity u""pu,t"d-.IIilIiilifEIIF
Notes to first timJ
rdoption

As at
31 March 2021

Ae at
I April 2020

11,580.18 1,2,070.77
Inpact of Et\.;il;;*b1",
,,r,Ooa

-

I.tprirmc^t o, fi.o..

InrpJct oI LcJsc Liablity dccountcd as Dor In.l Aq 1 1 4

300.27 36E.98

8s.57 1,32.86
4 -1,013.18 -785.s9

76.57

r,,.Po.t dilGiiiiTlillEyo.".t -8.9E -5.26
1, -5.47

,r^ oo,rro -625.30 -289.02

762.58 75.1.4

tt,tt7.45 11,855.90



income for the

Er.o""/(Shor@
( 3 ) MAT C*A;iT;;Gil;TE;;;;

tho r *{u not b" i;;loEijlill;l;Er;lliil

It"n,s that will bclIl]GfiiI'Io-
narr valuc of FVOCI lnveshnent

I otJI comprehensive income for t

Reconciliation of

**Effcctivc Interest Spread

income for the year ended 31 March

.'-.....-,.--.."-,
Adjusturcnts:

-

I,rrpoirta"nt oa fino
l,r.po.t du" to fri,

Noteg to firgt tim;
rdoption 31-Mil-21

490.60

4 -227.59
Lnpact oI EIR* bascd anutisation of loan receivables L -5.47

-68.71

47.30
;,r,0r., r,. L"or" L,o

^.r.rr,rr "att 
Oa 

"

16.51

-3.72
Total

1.81

-338.10

87.9L

-'250.19

Othur.o,rp."

'Effcct!\ e lntcrcst Ratu

-740.79

1.34

-n9.45

ffi-ffi



Note8 to fir6t time adoption of Ind AS
(1) Fair valuation of ESOps

Undcr prcvious GAAP' thc Company-had m accouting policy choice to measue the optiore issued uder ESop either at fair value or imdcr prcviou GA'AP*ou""j th" Esop;;;;rd,".1"il1.';'n0".,.0 *, *e Esopschemeflo"HilffI"::T:::tjT Ii,".:.,..-*ic value. rhe compmy
;x?:.1ft?6::Ti^':nl"1ffiffji::r:xi1n'fit#*"T:,fi'J[?ffi*"Jj]]fl1#'""j*1**:m'"ty"fx]i,*tl[l]ffi:

j]) !o1n1nmts "f orher comprehensive income (OCD

::::,:'"**":ffi:r-::i::t""1}":1T:rT** *mprehensive income in the statement orrlorit and Loss orthe compmy:
-Changcs in fair valuc of investmcnts desigruted at FVOCI

All abovc adjwtnrcnts' cxcept remeauement 

'airo/(losses) 
on delined benelit prms, are recognised in other comprehmive income reserue (net of rerated deferrediffi:l;ll*" *te or tsmition and fo' *'" v"I' *i"'a iinl*"iror, *o *;;:ilil;;:%Hl"'.tio, in *,u it"tu*".t or p.oriiu.J r-oss ror the yea ended 31

(3) Remeasurement of defined benefit plan obligations
undcr Ind Ag remcasucments i'e 

.acfuaial gairo md losses md the retum on plm assets, excludins a3i,TliJllT'Iffi;ffil:1l,T"i:i"fi:j*:Tli_i:Ii:T51;;fflxJil::t"::"Ti:il'.ffiHx:;:::x*:[H::rf;t1Tj#*"J:,;T".
(4) Impairment of financiat assets

.^."1lil,iJ}$:. ,ffi;:il::il.ilij:]::'T"l;T":Hii;lo;ll,,t'rerines md Mmsemmt esrimatioro. under rnd As, the sme is required to be

fi'i"ii;:r',1.T,1y,':1::::i*ffi:ilf#x;;:ft:,ii#fu*ftrfil::[,3*}i,,#*","m"nt*;x;i:1ffii.:'"*il"
(5) EIR adiustment of Eansaction cost{incomea integral to the soucint of loan{bonowinga.

iil'""t"t.,'#:::trtffi:1.ff,::f""t":osts/incomes 
intesral to soucing.of loare/borrowinss were recognised upfront on an accruar basis. under Ind AS, theserctaiacdcarninss(*,r*i"i"Ji"i"i:H',11$j::y::'j:J,irffi;T'"'#:*:?:#,r"":":i'l;:*:kl;grxl.tix#fff::i;:1*;il1

47 Additional Information

11. Currcnt ratio 1i. rio

3. Total dcbts io
:, -!(( I rurrr Lllarqm rF

-

5. Scctor spccilic cquivalcnt
, , . -. ..... . ", .., "., "l(ii). N"t NPA ("r) (r, p", oppli.

!.S,ni,.t ," ,,r1-

F\ 27-22 rY 20-21

1,.O4 1,.34

2.40

0.69
7.82

3.02% -1.6.30"1

2.36% 4.76%
7.67% 3.38%

/. licr I CRAR
3. Tier II CRAR

l 34.29y" 40.28%
32.78% 38.35%
7.s7./" 1,.94%



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[.JrTJ?#,];J#T:ilHflilDALoNEFrNANcrALsrArEMENrs(conrinued)

48' The disclosures as required by the NBFC Master Directions issued by RBI(Disclosures are made as per Ind AS financiar statements except otherwise stated)

(C) Derivatives
As on 31 March,2, the company does not have any derivaties. ( 31 March 2021: N,)

Capital

I particulars As at 31 March
2022 202't

34.29% 40.28%

lucRAR -il rcettaiT 32.78% 38.35%

(iv) Amount of r,rUo
(Raised during the year . Nil, previous year . Ni,l io, ,"" i"unrl I

1..51,% 1,.94%

500.00 500.00

(B) Investments

Value of i.rrr".GE
cross value oai";;til;E

(ii)P.oririo.rrfoffi

iii) Net vaiue of investments

(II) Movementffi
mortisation on investments

Add: Provisio.r *uE
iii)L"rr,w.it"off@

/'t/*,
o)

o

Outside India



(D) Disclosures relating to securitisation

a) The information on securitisatinn nf rL,^ r-^*-^_
securitised under par il:llT:'*1r,."'*company 

as an oriSinator in respect of outstanding amount of assets

(Rs in Lakhs)

Noof SPVsrpo.*or"ffi
transactions

otal amount of securitised assets as per books of the SpVs

Toral,amount of exposures-retained by tf," NffC ,olliiwith MRR as on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet

I,.:l_!gq' 1tn ro.*IrEila

A,m-ount of exposures to securitisatio. t unru"tio*Etf
MRR

Off-baiance 
"h"ut 

uGIJr""
ure to own securitisations

On-balance sheet

re to own securitisations

ii)Exposure to third party securitisations

b) During the year the Company has transferred
activity of the Cornpany as an originator is given

loans through securitisation
below:

The information on securitisation

Sr. No.

2

Particulars

Tnfel

(Rs in Lakhs)
Year ended 31

March 2022
Year ended 31

March 2021
vr ru4rts securluseo

-

lTotal book uulu" o

lTotal book uulr" o
;, ";il;;;;i 

"rqs ur LrrE ,uans securitised including loans placed

-

tut" ao.r,O"ruuo.
Overcollateratlrut

-

E^xcess interesa 
"pt-toss

3222 2202
4,590.24 3,527.83

4,590.24 3,527.834

I
6

4,1,71..06 3,194.30
419.17 333.52

1



c) Details of assignment transactions undertaken

Sr. No.

7

Particulars

No. of acnorrnte

(Rs inLaldts)
Yuar.ndedJi-
March 2022

Year ended 31

March 2021

2 lAggr"grt" uul.," of u..or.tffi
,.ggregare.onrr.iffi
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts
transferred in earlier years

-

Aggresafe oai-,/l^..F

7,222

1,793.33

1.,61,4.00

5

(E) Details of non performing financial assets purchased/sold
(a) Details of non performing financial assets pJrchased

The Company has not purchased any non-performing financial asset during the current and previous year.

Details of non

Particulars

(ii) Asereoa t" 
^, 't.

(Rs in Lakhs

As at 31 March
2022 2021
703 758

(iii) Aesrec'atp conci
220.00 180.00

r&7
QI

p)
2( P



LOANTAP CREDIT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

irffiff#|ff#oF rHE STANDALoNE FTNANCTAL srArEMENrs (continued)

(lll) Details oI financing oI prent Company producb
The company does not have uy financing of peent compmy products duing the cwst ad previous yea
(lV) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/Group Bonowo Limit (GBL) exceededThe Comp.ny has not exceeded the prudstiat exposue limits J*ag ,1," ;ri*, *O previous ye{.

(V) Unssured advmces

f;:::::il"T,:x:f:::.T::'ffilffi'[";,advilcsor&3'18'82,e2,606 (previousveuRsz81,s0.53.703)

1t-'.:ffl"]^
Iljl-ll3llllll ill be occuprea hv itr. boffoh.er or rhat is rented

F,.d bu'"d u^d .*IiI-IIIJ

ll*","T'-1',"T:1il:il#xY":i:ffi :il.1'i::"T;*' *"vstibre debentures 6d qits or equitv oriented muruar fuds the

Advoce5 6g3ia51 564res/honds/debenrur"" 
", ^rr.. "-.,._,,,.._. - -_]]-ll,a,r,a,ur, i,', i.,",*"ni;:;il;;:i*"' "r 

other seculities or on clean basis

/erdbie dph.nr,,,_" . uding IpOs/ESOps), convertible bonds,

*1t-".'^"":I'J"i:t LT;;t: 
*n*" *-es or convertible bonds or converrible debentues ot uit. or equity oriented mutual

Advances for any other Purposes io the exlent secured by the collateral security of shdes or conve*ible bonds or convertible:ntutes o! units or equity oriented mutual frndr i.". *h; rh. ;;;; "*rrir, "*", ** 
"hdes/convertible bonds/convertiblentures/units oI equity oriented mutual funds doe, 

".,IrXy "J;;J;;;1.,Secured and wrcured advmcs to st(kbrokets md guilutee" i""r"d o. buh-lI-lockbrokers and market makersr

^i,l}i :i1',"rTXl;'fiJ:Xtueisrasa^t 
the securitv oI shues/bonds/d"*n,*@

'rhe.&e erpo*urc. denorca 

"* ".;;--IIi

([) Exposures



(G) Regishation obtained fr
The companyhas obtained, 

otherfinancialsectorregulators

registration no. ,; ad;;;t'ifffil"J";"ii,TlAgent (composite) in lune 2018 with rnsurance Reguratory and Deveropment Authoriry of rndia (rRDAr). rhe

(H) Details of penalties imor
D *^e il ;;;;ffi ilil1'ilffi"1Tl":ffJ J"o*"i-'mposed by RBI or other regulators ( 31 March 2021: Nil)

(I) Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

CRISIL Ratings Limited
Instrument AmountiE^li-ililli-

CRISII. 
I_pyLD_B BB_r/ S table

Long Tenn Bank Facilities 20n00 l'revious Rating
No Migration

Non convertible OuU*til
MLD

2500
N o, r .o.,r".t, bliEEli]r-G

No Migration'ARE Rat
Instlument Amount (R" i" fiEJ

Long Tenn Bank Facilities
19000

2500

3000

Lul:rent rating
CAM
CAM

Previorr*
Non convertible -;;t"*,

No Migration
Cornrnercial Rupui l.zuf No Migration

CARE A3 No Migration
India Ra

Instrument A
Nr. conv"rtible DJilfG

5000 lNp BBB_ / Stable No Migtation

(J) Remuneration of non-executive Directors
During the year ended 31 March 22' no remuneration has been given to non-executive Diectors ( 31 March 2021: Nil)

(L) Draw down from Reserves
During the year, the Cornpany has not drawn down any amount froln reserves.

(M) ConcenEation of deposits, advances, exposwes and. NpAs

(l) Concentration of deoosits

-
-

r or,I oeposits of twenty largest depositors

Particulars As at 31 March
2022 2027

P"."".tog" of d"porit, to NA NA
Alro'c disclosurc is no, oOO,,.nOn NA NAtaking

II Concentra tion of advances

P As at
(Rs in Lakhs)

31 March
r orJl adv.lnces tu twenty largest borrowers 20y2 2021,

475.53 374.45
Thc above exposurcs dcnotcs grcs caryint amount 7.49% 1,.33%

Concentration of exposures (Inctuding off-Balance Sheet

particulars
(Rs in Lakhsl

As at 31 March
2022 2027

I

r H

"to*uru

475.53 375.39

7.32% 1,.23%

6r*ryf:iliN 1o,

Provisions and

Break up of'Plovisions and contingencies'shown in the statement of profit and Loss

-

P.ouirioa, for.,on pu.fo.
Provision for incorne tax _
Provision for standard as
Oth". p.ouit

(Rs in I

For the year ended 31 Much
2022 2027

-776.41 L85.67
49.30 3.30

159.33 61.4.38

27.78 2.t.39

(rx



Concentration of NpAs

Particulars
As at

(Rs in Lakhs)

-

31 March. ".*, .^pusure ro rop Iour t\p.A a..oilnrc 

-

.,,r .,.'.1 !,' q(l'14(5 
trns'.

2022

34.47
2021

37.47

Sector-wise NpAs

Sector

vi) Auto loans
,ii) Oth"" p"r"o.rl lili!

lolo of NPAs toTiilf
Advances in the
sector as at 31 march
1a

0%

0%

0%

0y.

236%

0%

0%

(N Movement of NpAs

Particulars
(Rs in Lokhct

.For the year ended 31 March
r\er i\rAs to net advances (%
lawernent of NpAs (Gross)

2022 2027
1,.67% 3.38%

(a) Opening balance-;-:-:::+-
(b) Additions during the year 1,341.37 722.46
(c) du the loars writ 568.20 7,448.75

| (d) Clo.i.rg bolo.,."

I

| (a) Opening balance
,U, eadiaio.. arri.S *r.." y

,,'t .,

1,,756.24 R)C

753.33 1,341.37

938.96 505.72
397.74 7,01.3.70

809.37 580.47
527.33 938.96

(a) Opening ba.lancem 402.41, 276.74
885.14 1,074.91

(d) Closine balance 1,061.55 829.24
226.00 402.41

(O) Disclosure of conrplaints
Custonter cor

Particulars_r\o. or colnpt.lrnts pending at the begirninq of the

As at 31 March
202l 2021

No. of cornplaint" 7

No. of 
"o

30 18
*o. of .o, 29 77

1

(P) Disclosure of

-Company does not havc cxposurc to Cold Lom

As at 31 March

as % of total assets

6vr,&r-
tt PUNE



urrbu, of lou,,-iilGE

-cotrrpany docs not huu" 
".po"*!to-cold lo*

(R ) The disclosures as required by the Master Direction -Monitoring of frauds in NBFCTThere were no cases (Previous vear - No cases) of frauds lprevious year - No Frauds) ."r.r:"::T#J;"'il}"t 
29 sePtember 2016

(S) Disclosures as required for liquidity risk
(I) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty

I pa*iculars l-akhs

As at March 22

1

As at March 21

2

5,469.52
__-__o- "-.-rrqu.b LUrrccrrrranon to total liabiities

-

NA NA

(II) Top 20
13.91,% 25.41.%op 20 large deposits

Not applicable as the Cornpany is a Non_Deposit taking NBFC.

(II(lll) Top 10 borrowinss

Particulars
(Rs in Lakhs)

As at March 22 As at March 21

9,032.68
37.447, 44.64%(IV) concentration based on

Particulars 

-

m

As at March 22

-

5,616.29

72,828.94

2,808.68

% of total
liabilities As at March 21

% of total
liabilities

than bank 20.03% NA* NAuornrnercral paper
H 45.76'/. 72,649.86 58.78%

mstrument issued au 
"u

70.02% NAT NA

as a percentage of total assets

Other shorr t"r,r. tiJilEIlil of total pubtic frnE
short tenu liabilities as a
short term liabilitie;;;

Non-convertible d"dil;;
tu."s as a peFfriiEif'l6ta-fiilElJ

*Not appricable as th".o..o.rffi : debcnturcsissucdby aL" Co-@



49. Disclosure as per format o
DoR.srR.REc.; {;;:;;.;;;i;;;;:;:rJ;ir":ffi:rffiiton no. RBr72020-21y'6 DoR.No.Bp .Bqsp1.u.o4vp020-21 dated 5th Ausust2020 and RBrp02r_2?Bl

Disclosure as per fo,nat prescribed under notification no RBI/2020-21/16 DoR.No. Bp.Bc/3/2L.04.04g/2020-21dated August 20,2020 for the period ended september
30,2021

resolution
plan - Position

at the end of
30th Sep 2021

n of resolution

Of (A), aggregate debt
slipped into NpA

the half-year
31st March 2022

(A) amount

ended 31et

(A) amount paid
the borzowers

the halfyear

consequent to

re6olution
- Position

at 31st March

Erposure to
accounts

classified as

Standard
consequent to

of resolution
plan - Position

as at the end of
the previous

half-year (A)

Of (Al, aggregate debt
that slipped into NPA
during the half-year

Of {A} amount
written off durint

the half-year

Of (A) amount paid by
the borrowers during

the halfyear

Exposure to
accounts

classified as

Standard
consequent to

implementation
resolution plan

- Position as at
the end of this

half-year



50' Disclosure of reskuctured account' as required by the NBFG Master Directions issued by RBI

Fresh restructuring during the year*

Upgradations to restructured standard

Restructured standard advances which
cease to.attract higher provisioning and /additional risk weilht at th";"i;f;"

' and hence need not be shown as
structured standard advances at the

beginning of the next Fy.

provision thereon*

Downgradations of restructured accounts

Write-offs / Settlements / Recoveries of
restructured accounts during the Fy*

Restructured Accounts as on 3L March
2022 (Closing figures)

"ffi[1fi::,"*'i[T,{;n:.,il,"]:1ti:i:i:ff.T,i:.Jil..,1t:'il"?,*::';"T.,J;i,y.""::ff[:**e,y, 

,,Under 
CDR Mechanism,, and ,,under

*Includes 
rnovernent oI Amount outsanding and Provision thereon of the Existing Resturctured Accounts.**Provisions 

considered as per ECL.
#Represents movernent by asset classilication.

51' Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification -RBwoTg-201i0 DoR (NBFC).CC.pD.No.109122. 70.r0G/2'tg-zoDated 13 March 2020 _ A comparison,t::Hlff:[i:1"""t:Hir11ffi:l;l}'";;;;;"; l;etcrassirication 
",'ap,,,,i"i1,,i,,g (rRAcp)and impairmentarowances asperrnd AS 10e

Asset classification as per the RBI norms
(1)

Asset
classificat
ion as per
Ind AS
10e (2)

Gross carrying
amount as per
Ind AS (3)

lLoss
lallowance
(Provisions) as
required
under Ind AS
10e (4) Net carrying amount (5)

= (3) _ (4)

Provision
required as pet
IRACP norms
(6)'

Difference between
Ind AS 109
provision and
IRACP norms (7) =
(4) - (6)

(a) Performing Assets

23,347.28Standard Stage 1 384.02 22,963.27
7,039.40

93.39 290.63
Subtotal (a

926.74 6,1.12.66 501..28 325.46

Ad.o8
30,386.69 1,310.76 29,075.93 694.67

(b) Non-Perf orming ai*t"lNf,et
Stage 3

i) Substandard
7,496.06 373.90 7,1.22.76ii) Doubtful up to L49.61 224.29

1 year itage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3
More than 3 years

Stage 3

St"g" 1
Stage 2

Stage 3

Subtotal

224.29

c) Other items

-;"fi;

7,496.06 373.90 1.,t22.1,6 749.61,
5,696.96 48.24 5,648.72 48.24

69.42
5s1.64

28r-r0
69 42 482.22
84.34 797.56 84.34

6,530.50 202.00 6,328.50

-",1-l
Stage 1 29,0M.25 432.26

202.00
28,617.99 93.39 338.87

7,591.04 996.17 6,594.87 601.28 394.8tStage 3 1.,777.96 458.24 7,31.9.72 149.61,Iotal 38,413.24 1,886.66 36,526.s8 844.28alue as per thu ".rt*hiluliEp no
7,042.

,,il



52 Regrouping 

Figures in respect of the previous year/period have been rearranged /regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the figures of the current period 

53 Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs. 

As per our report of even date. 

For D 5 RV AND CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

!CAI Firm Registration Num : 006993N/N500073 

� 
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 

Partner 

Membership No.: 092678 

UDIN: �.2.o q .1 b 1 'i fr. �1--� &18\/\ 1. 
Place : Gurugram 

Date: 30/05/2022 

For and on behalf of the LoanTap Credit Products Private Limited

Satyam Kumar 

Director 

DIN:07461961 

Place: Pune 

Date: 30/05/2022 

Place: Pune
 M. No. A43689

Date: 30/05/2022 

VikasKumar 

Director 

DIN:03112103 

Place: Pune 

Date: 30/05/2022 
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